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Silicone rubber comes from the earth and return
to the earth

Silicone rubber is an environmental friendly material.
For the sake of our earth, Ta Yang adheres to our
philosophy of “innovation, quality and service”
making the environmental friendly silicone rubber
a part our live and our world a better place.
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Our mission

is to consolidate the leading market position by providing a wide
range of value-added silicone rubber products.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman)

Wu |h Chen (Chief Executive Officer)
Lin Hung-Ming

Wong Tak Leung

Huang Te-Wei

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Kirk Yang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen
Yeung Chi Tat

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Huang Sheng-Shun*
Wu Ih Chen

Huang Te-Wei

Chan Oi Fat

Wu Pei Mun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Yeung Chi Tat*
Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

Corporation Information

NAEER

HITES
EBR(ER)
REN(FTBAE)
B

BiER

EiER

FHTES
1B

BMFHITES

Bk
B#hE

HITEES
R
L&
BT
B
KR

FMWEES
i

Sk

A4

Annual Report 2010 —E—ZFF#%H §




6

Corporation Information
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Yeung Chi Tat*
Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yeung Chi Tat*
Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Yeung Chi Tat*
Wu Ih Chen
Huang Te-Wei
Chan Oi Fat

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wu Ih Chen
Huang Te-Wei

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Chan Oi Fat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Oi Fat

AUDITORS
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

*  Committee chairman
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INTERNATIONAL CONTROL REVIEW
ADVISOR

SHINEWING Risk Services Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street, P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman KY1-1107
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

PRINCIPLE PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Flat 28 23rd Floor, Metro Centre |
21 Lam Hing Street

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Corporation Information
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Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 GT

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FERODBFRETARE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group(Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street, P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman KY1-1107

Cayman Islands
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Corporation Information
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.tayang.com

STOCK CODE
1991

SHARE INFORMATION
Listing Date: 8 June 2007

Stock Name: Ta Yang Group
Stock Code: 1991
Nominal Value: HK$0.10

Board Lot: 2,000 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Ms. Jenny Wu

Investor Relations Manager
Telephone: (852) 3678 5088
Facsimile: (852) 3678 5099

FINANCIAL YEAR END
31 July
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Directors’ Profile

EEEN

Huang Sheng-Shun

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, aged 56, is the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. He is responsible for the development
of our general corporate strategy, operation management,
planning and decision making. Mr. Huang, together with
Mr. Wu |h Chen, founded the Group on 7 May 1991. Prior
to the establishment of the Group, he was the operation
manager of a chemical company between June 1978 and May
1982. Afterwards, he worked at Ta Yang Qil N Fat Industrial
Co., Ltd. (KFHIE TERMNBERAR]), a private company, and
since 1986 became the company’s general manager until 2005.
Mr. Huang and his family members have been the shareholders
of Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd. until Ta Yang Oil N Fat
Industrial Co., Ltd., ceased operations and was wound up in
April 2006. Save as disclosed above, there is no relationship
between Ta Yang QOil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd. and each of the
Group’s companies, its directors, its substantial shareholders
and their respective associates. Mr. Huang is the father of
Mr. Huang Te-Wei, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huang has also been a non-executive director of Formosan
Union Chemical Corp., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation, from 1 July 1987 to 30 June 1996 and
from 1 July 2002 to present. He has over 30 years of experience in
management positions in the chemical manufacturing industry.
Mr. Huang graduated from the Faculty of Law, National Taiwan
University in 1976. Mr. Huang is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.
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Wu Ih Chen

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wu |h Chen, aged 59 is the executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu has over
22 years of experience in the silicone rubber industry. Mr. Wu,
together with Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun founded the Group on
7 May 1991. Presently, He is mainly responsible for the marketing,
administration and financial planning of the Group. He is also
devoted to the development of the core techniques and
has personally developed various patented keypads. Mr. Wu
graduated from the Aletheia University in 1971 and completed
the Studying Program for Hong Kong Senior Management in
Business organised by the Peking University in the PRC. Mr. Wu
is a director for the Eleventh Board of Directors of International
Association of Chinese Traders. Mr. Wu is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wu is the elder brother of Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, the associate
general manager of the Group and the father of Mr. Wu
Chung-chieh, Jack and Ms. Wu Pei Min who are the corporate
development manager and the corporate relations manager
of the Group.

Wong Tak Leung

Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, aged 49 is an Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager. Mr. Wong joined the Group in May
1993 and was subsequently promoted to deputy managing
director in 2001.
marketing functions of the Group. During 1981 to 1989,

Mr. Wong is responsible for the sales and

Mr. Wong served in the Strategic Planning Department of Hong
Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Wong is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Lin Hung-Ming

Executive Director and Research & Development Director

Mr. Lin Hung-Ming, aged 46, is an executive Director and the
research and development director of the Group. Mr. Lin joined
the Group in 1993 and is currently responsible for research
and development of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated from the
Department of Mechanics, Private Chih-Kwang Vocational High
School of Business and Technology. He has over 21 years of
experience in the silicone rubber industry. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lin was a factory manager of an electronics
company in Taiwan.

Huang Te-Wei

Executive Director and the General Manager

Mr. Huang Te-Wei, aged 30, is an Executive Director and the
general manager of the Group. He is the head of our control
department with responsibilities to overseeing the Group’s
compliance and internal control matters. From 2008 onwards,
Mr. Huang was also responsible for the supervision of the daily
operation of the Group factories in the PRC and strategic
planning. Mr. Huang graduated from the Industrial Administration
stream, Department of Business Administration, National
Taiwan University and has undergone military training in Taiwan.
Mr. Huang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Huang is the eldest son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, the
Chairman and the Executive Director of the Group.
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kirk Yang, aged 43, is a non-Executive Director of the
Company. He holds Bachelor (with distinction) and Master of
Science degrees in Electrical Engineering from Purdue University
and Master of Business Administration (Finance, Accounting and
Marketing concentrations) from University of Chicago.

Mr. Yang is currently a Managing Director and Head of Asia
Ex-Japan Technology Hardware and Components Equity
Research at Barclays Capital Asia Limited. Before that,
Mr. Yang held the same position at Nomura International (Hong
Kong) Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Yang served as chief financial
offer in a leading private China IT software company and our
company. Mr. Yang was also a Managing Director and Head
of Asia Technology Research of Citi Investment Research of
Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited based in Hong Kong
(“Citi") where he was awarded the No.1 analyst by Institutional
Investors, Financial Times and Greenwich in 2004, 2006 and 2007
respectively in recognition of his accomplishment in investment
equity research industry and ranked top 3 during most of his
career. Before joining Citi, Mr. Yang served as the Director and
Head of Asia Technology Hardware Research at Credit Suisse.
Mr. Yang has more than eight years of experience in investment
banking equity research industry including worked at Goldman
Sachs and BNP Paribas respectively. Mr. Yang also has more
than seven years experience in management consulting, sales/
marketing and engineering operation in various corporations
such as A.T. Kearney, Accenture, HP/EDS, Emerson Electric,
IBM, and AT&T. Mr. Yang did not hold any position in the Group
since 1 February 2009.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hsieh Yu, aged 62, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a certificate for solicitor in Taiwan
in 1977 and jointed the Taipei Bar Association immediately as
a practicing Attorney-at-Law. He is the responsible officer of
B 12/ A 2 ETEFT. He had been the legal consultant for various
corporations and organizations. Mr. Hsieh graduated from the
Faculty of Law, National Taiwan University in 1976.
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Independent Non-Executive Director
Professor Jou Yow-Jen, aged 54, an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Professor Jou is currently
an associate professor of Department of Information and
Finance Management and Institute of Finance at National Chiao
Tung University. Professor Jou has been participated actively
in research on data analysis, time series analysis model, Ito
model application, Monte Carlo model, O-D mode and options
pricing etc. She has rich knowledge in statistics, econometrics,
financial time series analysis and financial information analysis,
and had done several fundamental researches on Economics
and Finance. Prior to joining the Company, Professor Jou was
an associate professor of Institute of Statistics at National Chiao
Tung University, the statistician of Directorate General of Budget,
Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan, R.O.C. (Taiwan) and
the planning controller of Taiwan Power Company. Professor
Jou obtained bachelor and master degree from National Chung
Hsing University and National Chen Chi University in Taiwan
respectively and Ph. D in doctorate in Statistics from Wharton
School of University of Pennsylvania.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, aged 41, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in
business administration from The University of Hong Kong and
a master’s degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the president of the International Financial Management
Association Hong Kong headquarters. He is currently the
financial controller and company secretary of Dynasty Fine
Wines Group Limited (Stock Code: 828), an independent non-
executive director of ANTA Sports Products Limited (Stock
Code: 2020) and Boer Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1685), all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung had previously worked at
a major international accounting firm for over ten years. He
possesses experience in auditing, corporate restructuring and
corporate financial services.
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Senior Management Profile

Chan Oi Fat

Financial Controller & Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Oi Fat, aged 32, joined the Group in January, 2008
as the financial controller and the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible for the financial and
accounting management and secretarial affairs of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was an audit manager in
an international accounting firm. Mr. Chan has over 9 years of
experience in professional accounting and auditing experience.
Mr. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor in accountancy. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Wu Tien-Tao

Associate General Manager (Huzhou Office)

Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, aged 52, is the associate general manager.
He oversees the operation of Huzhou Factory. Mr. Wu joined
our Group in August 2003 and has been responsible for the
operation of the Huzhou factory of the Group since then.
Mr. Wu has over 11 years of experience in the production of
silicone rubber and multiple layered and soft printed circuit
boards. Mr. Wu is the younger brother of Mr. Wu |h Chen, an
executive Director of the Company.
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Striving for
INNOVATIVE IDEAS
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Chairman's Statement

ERE®E

“Utilizing all resources and
aiming at Blue Ocean markets.”

"BAB - BEEERTS o "

Huang Sheng-Shun
=5

Chairman /&

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors of Ta Yang Group Holdings
Limited, | am pleased to present to all shareholders the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2010.

The global financial tsunami in the last quarter of 2008 presented
us the greatest challenge in our corporate history. Despite the
joint efforts of governments worldwide to improve liquidity, the
shattered global consumer confidence did not recover to its
former level. Thanks to the concerted efforts of our staff who
remained resilient and proactive in difficult times, the Group
experienced a considerable growth in turnover and recorded
profits again this year as compared to the net loss last year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

By the end of the financial year, the Group’s turnover increased
by 30.9% to HK$812.1 million.

The Group's profit for the year was HK$67.3 million, as compared
to the net loss of HK$38.9 million last year. Earnings per
share for the year was HK8.51 cents (2009: loss per share of
HK4.86 cents).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, following the optimization of product structure
by integrating our production facilities in Dongguan and
Huzhou, the Group had achieved better cost control and supply
chain management. Although the operating environment
remained very tough, the Group managed to improve gross
profit by increasing utilization of facilities and changing its
product mix. The Group had upgraded the existing products
with up-to-date technology.

Keypads for consumer electronic devices and computers
continued to be our core businesses. The continuous integration
of 4C products brought huge challenges to the Group and
dampened the demand for traditional consumer electronic
products. However, at the same time, a new opportunity
emerged as consumers are willing to pay for innovative products,
and the Group had seized this opportunity by producing high
quality products with advanced technological features to meet
the needs of customers.

Despite the challenging business environment, the newly
launched brand “SIPALS" maintained steady growth during the
year and had gained increasing consumer support. Although its
contribution is still immaterial to the Group, we are confident
that “SIPALS” will become our driving force in the future.

OUTLOOK

While the overall economy and consumer confidence seem to
have be bottomed out, Greece and the rest of Europe might
post uncertainties and risks to the global economy. To cope
with these challenges, the Group will continue to implement
a number of stringent cost optimization measures to reduce
operating costs in order to maintain its competitiveness.
Moreover, the Group will further strengthen its relationship
with existing customers and diversify its customer base.

The Directors are optimistic about the future development
of the Group’s business and will continue to implement the
well-established business strategies to enhance the Company’s
value and to bring outstanding return to the shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank the management and staff for their dedication and hard
work during these challenging times. The Group will strive to
strengthen our leading position in the industry.

Huang Sheng-Shun
Chairman and Executive Director

Chairman's Statement
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Business Review & Outlook

FIGOENRRE

MARKET REVIEW

The aftershocks of the financial tsunami and the outburst of the
Greek debt crisis in 2010 led to a disastrous knock-on effect
on the Eurozone economy and weakened the global economy.
Despite the joint effort of worldwide governments to provide
liquidity, the badly shaken global consumer confidence had
not been restored to its former level. It is understandable that
traditional products such as desktop computers and automotive
peripheral products got a bigger hit.

However, market demand for innovative portable devices
offering significant value, namely 3G smartphones, laptops
and sub-notebooks (netbooks), remained strong. As a result,
huge challenges and opportunities were brought to the industry
at the same time.

During the year, the Group was able to capture the opportunity
of the surging innovative portable devices demand, which in
turn drove the sales of keypads. As such, the Group recorded
a remarkable growth in turnover during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Company’s Overall Performance

Amid the aftershock of financial turmoil and Greek debt crisis,
the global market and operating environment were exceptionally
challenging during the year, the Group, however, enjoyed a
dramatic growth in turnover that reached a record high for
the Group. Turnover for the financial year ended 31 July 2010
increased by approximately 31% as compared to last year. The
primary source of income of the Group still derived from sales
of consumer electronic devices, but its percentage to total
turnover decreased from 48% to 44%. Thanks to recent surge in
demand for portable devices, the sales of keypads for mobile
phones recorded outstanding performance and increased by
116% which is our main driving force for growth. Therefore, its
proportion to total turnover increased from 9% to 15%.

Under the current global economic slowdown, customers
are becoming less willing to accept increase in selling price.
However, after continuous negotiations with our customers, we
were able to transfer a certain portion of cost increments to
them. Moreover, the Company’s efforts to expand its customer
base had borne fruit, solidifying ties with new sizable customers.
Despite the portable devices with touch-screen panel become
more and more popular, the current adverse impact is much
less than expected. Many of those portable devices are
still equipped with keypads, or keypads have become their
peripherals. This brought new opportunities to the industry.

Although operation costs in the PRC remained high, we
succeeded in improving our gross profit margin during the
year through greater economies of scales, effective cost control
and productivity enhancement.

The expansion in production of keypads for laptops and
netbooks at Huzhou plant started to contribute to the Group.
With the increase in sales order, the utilization rate improved
steadily. By implementing prudent management strategies,
operating costs such as manufacturing overheads and cost of
materials were under control.
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In addition, the defect rate for our production decreased
during the year, which further improved our performance. The
decrease in defect rate was mainly due to our reorganisation
of production process which led to a smoother and more
efficient production flow. All these efforts brought about a
tremendous improvement in our business that benefited the
overall profit margins.

During the year, the increase in the Group's gross profit margin
was constrained due to the increase in production costs as a
result of the rise in wages and raw material costs. In response to
the demand for salary raise from workers, the Group increased
the wages in 2010. Due to the imbalance between supply and
demand in the PRC labour market, especially in Guangdong
province, it was expected the wage level will keep rising in the
near future. The Group had commenced the project to move
a certain portion of the production to the western part of the
PRC where production costs will be lower.

During the year, the newly launched brand “SIPALS” managed
to maintain steady growth by providing a wide range of new
lifestyle products with environmental friendly features and
cultural concepts. During the year, apart from the Taiwan market,
the new brand expanded into the PRC market and continued
to gain consumer supports. Although the revenue from SIPALS
was still insignificant during the year, we believe these products
will contribute profit in future. To sustain its growth, the Group
will continue to maintain high-margin products and focus on
marketing these products to broaden its customer base and
explore business opportunities.

Consumers are expecting more sophisticated and integrated
products and services, and hence we will strengthen our
research and development capabilities, so as to introduce
the most attractive and innovative products to customers and

differentiate us from our competitors.
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OUTLOOK

Over the past year, the Group has gained invaluable experience
in a stressful business environment and laid solid foundation in
adversity. While keeping a watchful eye on the development of
the debts crisis in the Euro economic zone and performance
of the European market in the near future, the management
remains cautiously optimistic about the prospects of the
Group's business.

Looking towards the future, the Group will focus on several
major areas. It will further enhance operational efficiency by
continuing with the cost control measures and improvement
on productivity. In addition, the Group will put increasing
resources in research and development, such as planning to
set up a research centre to enhance product quality, develop
application ability of raw materials and increase product variety.
This proactive strategy will enable the Group to build up closer
relationships with both existing customers and potential new
customers. It will also continue to diversify our revenue mix
through consolidating existing businesses, enriching product
offerings, broadening its customer base and exploring new
business opportunities.

The continuous increase in production cost in the PRC
and resumption of appreciation of RMB will threaten the
Group's overall performance. Apart from the enhancement of
operational efficiency, the Group has started the plan to move
certain portion of the production to the location with lower cost
in western part of the PRC or even South East Asia.

We believed that these forward-looking efforts will strength
the leading position of the Group and lay a solid foundation
for future development.

Business Review & Outlook
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Turnover represents gross revenue generated from the sales
of our products, net of sales tax and other similar taxes. Our
turnover is affected by the volume of total products sold and
the product mix because our product lines have different selling
prices.

The consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 July 2010 was
increased by 30.9% to HK$812.1 million (2009: HK$620.3 million)
while our profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$67.3 million (2009: loss of HK$38.92 million).

Basic earnings per share of the Company was HK8.51 cents per
share based on the weighted average number of 790,610,000
shares in issue during the year (2009: loss per share of
HK4.86 cents based on weighted average number of 800,000,000
shares).
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Keypads for consumer electronic devices

Turnover for the sales of keypads for consumer electronics
devices increased by approximately 20.6% to HK$355.9 million
in 2010 from HK$295.2 million in 2009.

Due to the gradual recovery of global economy and the
potential of increased spending by the consumer, the demand
for consumer electronics devices is increased dramatically.
Apart from the increase in sales orders from existing customers,
the customer base has been broadened by obtaining some
sizable new customers. This also led the turnover to increase
accordingly.

Keypads for mobile phone

Turnover for the sales of mobile phone keypads increased
by approximately 115.8% to HK$122.7 million in 2010 from
HK$56.9 million in 2009. During the year, the demand for the
innovative mobile phone such as 3G smartphone was still in
a rising trend. The Group has received tremendous orders for
the production of keypads which would still be equipped with
those smartphones even though they are using touch-screen
panels. Accordingly, it led to a remarkable growth in turnover
for the year.
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Keypads for computers and notebooks

Turnover for the sales of keypads for computers and notebooks
increased by approximately 18.9% to HK$258.5 million in 2010
from HK$217.4 million in 2009.

Same as innovative mobile phones, the market demand
for notebooks and netbooks computers were continuing to
climb. Their lightweight portability and increasing user-friendly
pricing has won consumers’ hearts. Although the recent tablet
computers became more and more popular, it did not bring
threat to the Group. On the contrary, new opportunity comes
as it created a new demand for peripherals for them such as
removable keyboards. It led the Group to be benefited from
this rapid changing market.

Automotive peripheral products

Turnover for the sales of automotive peripheral products
increased by approximately 32.7% to HK$36.6 million in 2010
from HK$27.5 million in 2009. With the effect from worldwide
government’s economic stimulus measures, global consumer
confidence had been gradually recovered and so as the demand
for the automotives especially for the US market. As a result,
sales order for automotive peripheral products also increased
accordingly.

Cost of Sales

Cost structure

The overall cost of sales increased by approximately 21.6% from
HK$519.2 million in 2009 to HK$631.5 million in 2010 which was
in line with turnover. Although operation environment to the
industry in the PRC is still tough, the rate of increase in cost
of sales is lower than that of turnover due to the effective cost
control measure and greater effect of economies of scales.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year 2010 was
HK$180.5million, which represented an increase of approximately
78.7% from that of HK$101.1 million for the year 2009. Apart
from boom in turnover, the increase of gross profit was also due
to the production cost in the PRC was succeeded to maintain
at a very stable level.
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The expansion in Huzhou plant for the production of keypads
of laptops and netbooks started to contribute to the Group.
With the increase in sales order, the utilization rate improved
steadily. This is also attributable to the implementation of
prudent management strategies in controlling operating costs
such as manufacturing overheads and cost of materials.

Thanks to the dedication of our sales staff, notwithstanding
the customers’ strong inertia in accepting the Group's product
selling price adjustments, we were still able to shift a certain
portion of the cost increment to the customers. As a result,
certain pressure on the continuous rise in wages and prices of
raw materials was relieved.

Other operating income

Other operating income decreased by approximately 0.4% to
HK$17.4 million in 2010 from HK$17.5 million in 2009, primarily
due to the decrease in interest income from bank deposits.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
0.6% to HK$28.1 million in 2010 from HK$28.3 million in 2009.
When counted as a percentage of the turnover, the total amount
was 3.5% (2009: 4.6%). The slightly decrease was attributable to
the implementation of effective cost control measures despite
of the significantly increase in turnover.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 0.2% to
HK$94.5 million in 2010 from HK$94.7 million in 2009. Although
the operation cost in the PRC remained very high, we were
able to maintain the administrative costs on a stable level
after the adoption of various tighter cost control measures on
daily operation.

Bad debts written off

With gradual recovery of global economy, the bad debt
expenses return to normal level during the year.

Profit (loss) for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 July 2010 was HK$67.3 million while
the loss for the year ended 31 July 2009 was HK$38.9 million.
The net profit margin of our Group increased to 8.3% for the
year ended 31 July 2010 (2009: net loss margin of 6.3%).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Directors expect that dividends will be paid as interim
and/or final dividends. We currently intend to pay annual
cash dividends of not less than 30% of our Group’s audited
consolidated profits after taxation to our shareholders for
the applicable year. However, the determination to pay such
dividends will be made at the discretion of our Board and
will be based upon our operating results, cash flows, financial
positions, capital requirements and other relevant circumstances
that the Board deems relevant. The payment of dividends may
be limited by legal restrictions and by agreements that we may
enter into in the future. Our Directors are of the views that our
dividend policy will not affect the sufficiency of our working
capital in the coming years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND
TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management
and investment on uncommitted funds. The net proceeds from
the international offering (as defined in the Prospectus) have
mainly been placed on short-term deposits with authorized
financial institutions in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group's receipts were mainly denominated

in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and RMB. Payments were
mainly made in US dollars and RMB.
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In respect of the US dollar, the management regards that the
foreign exchange risk for Hong Kong dollar to US dollar is
not material because (i) Hong Kong dollar remains pegged
to the US dollar and (ii) most of the Group's purchases are
denominated in US dollars, which are to be settled by sales
receipts in US dollars.

In respect of the RMB, as the Group's production plants are
located in the PRC, most of our labour costs, manufacturing
overheads, selling and administrative expenses were
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the appreciation of RMB will
adversely affect the Group's profitability. The Group will closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure for RMB and consider

hedging significant exposure should the need arise.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group's source of fund was cash generated
from net proceeds of the international offering and operating
activities. The financial ratios are as follows:
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As at As at

31 July 31 July

2010 2009

R-E—ZF RZZEZTNGF

+tA=+—H +tA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T FHIT

Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 333,789 458,000
Net cash outflow WemH F5 (126,982) (29,275)
Current ratio BN & 4.9 6.6
Quick ratio LD IR g 3.9 5.7

With our strong financial background upon Listing on the Stock
Exchange, we expect we will have sufficient cash to cover future
capital expenditure requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E T

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND BEARRNBRHEWE - B
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND N T
ASSOCIATES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of any HAEBEHE-_Z—ZFE+A=1+—HILEE
subsidiaries and associated companies for the year ended  WiIF#E & KBSk B ETMHE QR LEZ A

31 July 2010. Al e

USE OF PROCEEDS FriS IR FE

The net proceeds raised from the international offeringreceived AR BB BEEREEMERBEFHY
by the Company was approximately HK$635 million. 635,000,000 7T °

The usage of net proceeds until 31 July 2010 are as follows: HEZZ-—ZTFtA=+—H FIB33EFHE
EEHTIIRE

Particular Planned amount  Utilised amount
HE STEIAR 2FEARK
HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEBT

Expansion of production facilities for BERYBEDEERE

silicone rubber based products 468 (208)
Upgrade and expansion of RARIET i EERE

upstream production facilities 56 -
Strengthening research and hnagiEEee

development capabilities 39 (26)
Implementation of resources WITERIREI R

planning system 22 (1
General working capital —MREEED 50 (50)
Total HEt 635 285

The remaining net proceeds have been deposited on short- TS FIBFEHRAEF RN E S L BFEY
term basis in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong and  #&##%&{E52 Bi1F 70 -
the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS,
CONTINGENCIES AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS

Capital commitments contracted by the Group but not yet

provided for in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
July 2010 were approximately HK$8.6 million, which was mainly
related to the expansion of production capacity in Dongguan
and Huzhou in the PRC. Such capital commitments will be
financed by the net proceeds from the international offering.

As at 31 July 2010, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities and the Group's assets were free from any charge.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As the Group is committed to expand our production capacity
and develop high value-added products, such as mobile phone
keypads, experienced workers, engineers and professionals
are the most important assets to the Group. We offer on-the-
job training and encourage our staff to attend continuous
professional training in order to update their skills and
knowledge.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED A ¥ £ EZE R B R A 7

EXAEE REEEREELRH

R-EBE-FF+A=+—0 K&£EED
AIHERNGA VSRR BENERNEENA
8,600,000/ 7T + = E B4 7 7 B 3R 52 O
EERENER - BRAEAAES AR EERT
BSREFRRBS -

RIZ-ZTFLA=1+—H AEEALEBEX
HRAEE AAKRENEETEREEANE
o

ADE R FH N B R

HRASER N BERERARRAERIBEE
o Pl FHIRgE - MEEEROTIA - T8
B RBEEALNARENREZEAE - HifR
HEBSEI - YSBE T2INsEEEE
ASEHE 1 5 Y S BE L AR



- T IR
- - o m B &
s = . " s B g
&= "B T B
- .
- - " .
K & 4 * 8 A
]
LN | __'lli|
a4 . B T
- ag ™
" - - [
i & - -
L ] i m
i Fr® = a

We offer competitive remuneration package, including quality
staff quarters, trainings, medical, insurance coverage and
retirement benefits, to all employees in Hong Kong and in
the PRC. As at 31 July 2010, the Group has 9,076 permanent
and temporary employees (2009: 8,123). The total salaries and
related costs for the year ended 31 July 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$293.1 million (2009: HK$225.1 million).

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on
16 May 2007 for the purpose of recognition of employees’
contribution before the Listing. As at 31 July 2010, a total
of 6,660,000 share options were still outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, of which 4,830,000
share options are held by employees of the Group. The
Company also adopted a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on
16 May 2007. During the year, a total of 10,950,000 shares were
granted to the eligible grantee. As at 31 July 2010, a total of
10,584,000 share options were still outstanding under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme of which 6,984,000 share options are
held by the employees of the Group.
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Excellent Reputation for

QUALITY AND EFFICIENCY
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

EEERRE

/

Shareholders
BRER

Board of Directors

Exg

SHERHE

Company Secretary
NAMWE

Audit
Committee
EREEE

External
Auditor
INEEAZ S

Voluntary key practices adopted by the Company

Executive
Committee

HITEES

Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Group Policy and Procedures for independent professional
advice was established by the Company

Share Repurchase Policy was established by the
Company

Code of Ethics and Securities Transaction was adopted
by the Company

Continuing professional training to the Directors was
provided by the Company periodically

Remuneration

Compliance

Committee
EHRZEEE

Committee

FHEES

RAFEHREANERER

ARFREHRIEEBLEXRERNAE
BB R AR Fr
ARATE HIRT A BB R BOR

RABEHRMET REHFR 5T

AATEEMAESREFEFTEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted its own code on corporate
governance practices (“the CG Code”) which is not less than
the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the "HKEX Code") contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company is committed to high standard of corporate
governance and has applied all the principles in the HKEX
Code. This report is prepared with reference to the HKEX Code.
Throughout the financial year ended 31 July 2010, the Group
has complied with the provision set out in HKEX Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions, by Director of the Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for directors’
securities transactions (the “Model Code"”). All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the year.

The Company has adopted its "Code of Ethics and Securities
Transaction” to regulate the Directors and employees of
the Group in dealing shares of the Company and provide
guidelines and procedures on handling the conflict of interests

of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report
PERERWME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EES

Composition of the board of directors EESHAERK

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company comprises A RFIEEE€([EE=E ) AARAITES + —
five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three  ZIEMITEER =ZBIIFNTEEHK - &
independent non-executive Directors. The function of the E&REE A3EEIRBRERANDIIHEARE
Board is to guide the management to ensure the interests of X E|{REE ©

the shareholders of the Company are safeguard.

As at 31 July 2010, the Board comprises the following RZ-Z—TE+A=+—H EZ=EHNULTK
members: B4 -
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election as
Name of Director Position to the Board Director
= Bifu BREEES BE— KB
EZgRENAY EERESNEH
Huang Sheng-Shun Chairman/Executive Director 23/2/2006 27/11/2007
&5 IR/ HTES
Wu |h Chen Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 23/2/2006 29/12/2009
REH THAEE,WITES
Lin Hung-Ming Executive Director 23/2/2006 10/12/2008
MR HITES
Wong Tak Leung Executive Director 23/2/2006 10/12/2008
HIER HITES
Huang Te-Wei Executive Director 23/2/2006 10/12/2008
ER e HITES
Kirk Yang Non-Executive Director 18/4/2008 10/12/2008
B IERE FEMITEE
Hsieh Yu Independent Non-Executive Director 16/5/2007 27/11/2007
M BIYFRITES
Jou Yow-Jen* Independent Non-Executive Director 29/12/2009 N/A
EEE B EITES
Yeung Chi Tat Independent Non-Executive Director 16/5/2007 29/12/2009
BEE BIYFRITES

* Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen retired as an independent non-executive ~ * HERCEER-_ZTZAF+_A=-+NIAH

director on 29 December, 2009 and Professor Jou Yow-Jen EBEBYIERTEE B MALEHER
was appointed as an independent non-executive director on ZETNFT At hHEZEABIIE
29 December, 2009 BITES
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38

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time, taking into account the scope and nature of
operations of the Company, to ensure that the size of the
Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate
effective decision-making. The Directors come from diverse
background with varied expertise in finance, legal industry and
business fields. The biographical details of all Directors and
the relationships among them are set out in the “Directors’
Profile” and “Senior Management Profile” on pages 10 to
15 of this annual report and the Company’s website. Save
Profile”
“Senior Management Profile”, none of the Directors except
Mr. Huang Shang-Shun is the father of Mr. Huang Te-Wei, has
any financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and

AEEETRBRTESSHRBERANK - EF
GERARABNEKBERITE - UBRES
SHRER AR RNER - WIEHABR
K-BERRETAER  AESR  ZENME
XEHNEXANHE - MEEFHNEEFB R
REZHNBRINRAFHRFEIOEERISE
[EEHN IR SRERABBN I RAREH
uh o BRIEEHN IR SRERABBN -

PR ERESN - REBREERERBELENR
BN BEEREERENBMEEANE

BE - RIEREMEAKMAABAE -

The Board
E5g
=
5
1
3
Executive Directors Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
WITES FEMITESE BAIFRITES

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. All executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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Executive Directors

BITEE

Name

et

Position

B

Current Function/Experience

BAIRE K58

Huang Sheng-Shun
=l

Wu |h Chen
REH

Wong Tak Leung

BRER

Lin Hung-Ming
M

Huang Te-Wei
IR

Executive Director &
Chairman

WITESRER

Executive Director &

Chief Executive Officer

HITEFRITHAE

Executive Director &
Deputy General
Manager

HITESRAIBEE

Executive Director &
Research &

Development Director

HITESRAER
BHREBEE

Executive Director &
General Manager

MITEERALIE

Non-Executive Director

development of corporate operation and strategies

PELBLRENER

marketing, administration and financial planning

TTIHHERE - TTREE R E

sales and marketing

HERITHER

research and development

LI &Y

daily operation of the Group and strategic planning
AEENREEENKERL
overseeing the Group's compliance and

internal control matters

EEAKENARIANEREE

HBITEE

Name Position Experience/Skill

"L B BB

Kirk Yang Non-Executive Director corporate finance, investment, merger and acquisition,
15 FE A FEITES public relations and institutional investors relations

TEPE - KE - AGTEEE - 2HABEERR
BRI EERE
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHATEE

Name Independence’ Experience/Skill

HE B B8R

Yeung Chi Tat v o auditing and corporate restructuring

BEE EithexER

Hsieh Yu v J legal and compliance

A ERNAER

Jou Yow-Jen v o Statistics, econometrics, financial time series
A analysis and financial information analysis

Mat - FHELE - BBREFIOT KM BEER DN

Note 1: all independent non-executive directors are free from any
business and relationships that could materially interference
with the exercise of their independent judgement.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the Chairman, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, and the Chief
Executive Officer (the "“CEO"), Mr. Wu |h Chen are segregated in
order to ensure a clear distinction between the responsibilities
of the Chairman and the CEO.

There are clear demarcations of responsibility and authority
between the Chairman and the CEO which ensure an appropriate
balance of power, increased accountability and greater capacity
of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Chairman focuses on the Group's business and strategic
matters to ensure the Board is operated effectively. In addition,
the Chairman will lead the Board to establish good corporate
governance practices and procedures for the Group.

The CEO is responsible for the marketing, administration
and financial operation and to ensure the approved Group's
strategies are effectively implemented to achieve the goals
of the Group.
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Functions of the Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and affairs with the goal of
maximizing long-term shareholder’s value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests. The Board has the following
main duties:

. determine all the corporate matters;

. be responsible for the management, direction and
supervision of the businesses of the Group; and

° be responsible to ensure the effectiveness on Group's
financial reporting and compliance.

The Board has matters reserved for its decisions and these
include:

° the Group's long-term strategy and business plan;

° major capital projects, acquisitions or divestments;

o funding decision of the Group;

° internal control, risk management and compliance; and

° annual and interim financial results and shareholder
communications.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
managementofthe Group'sbusinessesto the executive Directors,
senior management and certain specific responsibilities to the
Board committees.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances. While allowing management
substantial autonomy to run and develop the business, the
Board plays a key role in structuring and monitoring the
reporting systems and internal controls. The composition,
functions of each Board committee and their major role and
function are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provide for in the terms of reference
of relevant committees.

EEENRE
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REARBRARBREME ANHEEE
ZRORRE M - EFRNEERAMT

s REMALEFEER:
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R

EFERBEHARAENEERRE

o AEERRERRNMES

pallg

B

+
e IEEANEAR  UWBHSHHE
o AFAREMRERK

o ABEE  RREENAR R

o  EERFHPBREMBRRRN

EXERBETHEZE XHRBEEAKER
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range
of skills and business experience to the Group. They also bring
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance
and risk through their contribution to the Board meetings and
to the Board's committee meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three independent non-executive Directors, representing
one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, one of them have appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based
on such confirmation, considers, Mr. Hsieh Yu, Professor Jou
Yow-Jen and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat to be independent.

The independence of each Director is reviewed annually
by the Nomination Committee based on the definition of
independence defined in the HKEX Code. The Nomination
Committee is satisfied as to the independence of Mr. Hsieh Yu,
Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, all of whom
do not have any relationship perceived to interfere with the
exercise of their independent business judgment with a view
to the best interest of the Company.

Directors’ appointment, re-election and removal

Each of the executive Directors has renewed his own service
contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 16 May 2010 and subject to a termination
by giving not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Kirk Yang has entered into a formal appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
1 February 2009, subject to a termination by either party giving
not less than one month’s prior written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors except
Professor Jou Yow-Jen has entered into a formal appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 16 June 2008, subject to a termination by either party
giving not less than one month'’s prior written notice.
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Professor Jou Yow-Jen has entered a formal appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
29 December 2009, subject to a termination by either party
giving not less than one month'’s prior written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all
Directors (including executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Board meetings and board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet at least four times a year, and
the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-level
decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate in
discussing the strategy, operational and financial performance
and internal control of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the
meeting and each Director may request to include any matters
in the agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for
the regular meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda
items have comprehensive briefing papers, which are circulated
at least 3 days before each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board opinions on
matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of
the Board meetings.
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If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company
will not dealt with the matter by way of written resolution or
by a Board committee (except if that Board committee was
specifically established for such purpose). The independent
non-executive Director with no material interest in the matter
will attend the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered
appropriate. Other than the exceptional allowed under the
Listing Rules, any Director who or whose associates have any
material interest in any proposed Board resolutions will not be
counted as a quorum in the relevant Board meeting or no vote
for the Board resolutions.

All the Board committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.

The following table shows the number and the attendance
records of the regular Board meetings held during the year:

METERRKEFHEZTER/TERNER
PEEMNEER  ARRNFEBERER
HEAREFTZE SRR ENMARZNE
FREERINREEZEFR - HRREE - R
SZERTEEARONBVIFNTESKLE
RILZEENEZE o R LR REFFPISME
AN EFEENENEESRERTEAE
MBEBAEANEAESREBEA - HTF5
ANEBESEERNEEARA  TISEE
AEFSRBRNERR -

FEESEBGRNESE SR P IIRAN
BRRAIRIER -

TRETRNFABHENESTSSZNHAR
hFE AL

Directors’ Attendance

ESHERH
Executive Directors HITES
Huang Sheng-Shun )b 5/5
Wu Ih Chen REW 5/5
Lin Hung-Ming MR 4/5
Wong Tak Leung BER 3/5
Huang Te-Wei =R 4/5
Non-executive Director FHITES
Kirk Yang 1B REE 3/5
Independent Non-executive Directors  BMFHITES
Chuang Hong-Jen' R 1/5
Hsieh Yu BiEG 5/5
Jou Yow-Jen? A2 3/5
Yeung Chi Tat BEE 5/5

! Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen retired as an independent non-executive
director on 29 December 2009.

2 Professor Jou Yow-Jen was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 29 December 2009.
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Access to information

The management will provide the Board with appropriate
and sufficient information through financial reports, business
and operational reports and budget statements in a timely
manner to keep them informed the latest development of the
Company.

The Directors are also provided with names and contact details
of the Company's senior management and the Company
to facilitate director access to senior management and the
Company Secretary.

Continuing professional development

The Directors are provided with continuing training in areas such
as corporate governance, financial reporting, PRC tax updating,
changes in Listing Rules so as to update and refresh them on
matters that affect or may enhance their performance.

Any Director may request the Company to provide independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company to discharge
his duties to the Company.

Introduction tailored kit will be given to newly appointed
Director to his individual needs. This includes meetings
with senior management to enable them to have better
understanding of the Group's business and strategy and the
key risks and issues.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of
the Company for the year 2010/2011. The insurance covers
them against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred
arising out of the corporate activities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES EEZXES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board BE=e@mnAEEEZESSEZRIETHRE  UE
has delegated specific functions to five Board Committees. The EEE@HITHREK T BEZEESATRE
principal committees of the Board are the Audit Committee, E& - FMEE €  IEREZEE AREES
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Compliance  N#1TEZEE - FH5FHHAT ¢

Committee and Executive Committee, details of which are as

follows:
Committee membership
ZE8NE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Compliance Executive
Name Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
i ERZEE REZEE FMzeg ARZEE HITZEE
Huang Sheng-Shun Eiap X
Huang Te-Wei EEE X X
Jou Yow-Jen IBEuE X X X
Hsieh Yu EiE X X X
Yeung Chi Tat BEE X X X X
Chan Qi Fat PR B 2% X X
Wu Ih Chen REH X X
Wu Pei Min RO X

A copy of each committee’s terms of reference is available from  &EZ 8 & /B EE A ] [ AR Bl KA 7
the company secretary of the Company. MEZE °
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Audit Committee

Composition

The Audit Committee was established on 16 May 2007 and
comprises three members, all are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu
and Professor Jou Yow-Jen. During the year, the role of the
members remains unchanged. The external auditors and the
financial controller also attended meetings by invitation.

The Audit Committee met two times during the year, the
attendance of the committee members are shown as the
following table:

MR

BERZEER _ETLFRATNARY - H
=RKEBHEK - 2RO REBIIFRTES - B
BEERE(ERE)  HMELERAPLHE -
FA - %EW%%%%T% SNEEAZ 2R A Ko B
BREMESLFEE:
BERZEERNFAEARAMAEE  TREBTZ
BEXEMHFELE

Name Attendance/Total Board Meetings
mH HELE SRR
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) BEE (£F) 2/2
Chuang Hong-Jen' HERC 1/2
Hsieh Yu AR 2/2
Jou Yow-Jen? IEkuiZ 1/2

Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen retired as an independent non-executive
director on 29 December 2009.

Professor Jou Yow-Jen was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 29 December 2009

The Audit Committee's responsibilities include the following: —
o the integrity of financial reports;

o the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk
management system; and

o the independence of the external auditors.

Further details on the work of the Audit Committee for the year
2009/2010 could be found under “Audit Committee Report”.
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Remuneration Committee

Composition

The members ofthe Remuneration Committee are Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

(Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor Jou Yow-Jen, of whom

are all independent non-executive Directors. Committee

members’ attendance are as follows: —

The Remuneration Committee met four times during the year,

the attendance of the committee members are shown as the

following table:

HWEES

AR,
FHEBEREABTELE(ER)  WHE
ERRHLHE  2HORBUIENTES -
ZEEKENHRLHENT : —

FNZE e FREARNREE  TRETZ
BEXBMHFELE

Name Attendance/Total Board Meetings
HE HELE SRAR
Yeung Chi Tat BEE 4/4
Chuang Hong-Jen' HRC 1/4
Hsieh Yu Bk 4/4
Jou Yow-Jen? [Bl4h32? 2/4

1.

Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen retired as an independent non-executive
director on 29 December 2009.

Professor Jou Yow-Jen was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 29 December 2009

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
the following: —

determine on behalf of Board, the Group's remuneration
policy for the executive directors and the senior
management team of the Company;

consider and advise on the terms of any contract to be
offered to a director; and

monitor the remuneration package of the Executive
Director and senior management team and make
recommendation.

Further information of the Remuneration Committee’s activities

is contained in "Remuneration Committee Report”.
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Nomination Committee
Composition
The Nomination committee comprises three members, all are

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
(Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor JouYow-Jen.

The key objective of the Nomination Committee is to ensure the
Board comprises individuals with requisite skills, experience, to
ensure that it is effective in discharging its responsibilities.

The Nomination Committee met one time during the year,
the attendance of the committee members are shown as the
following table:
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REZEENFAEFA—REE  TRETZ
BEREMHELE

Name Attendance/Total Board Meetings
HE HELE EREY
Yeung Chi Tat HEE 11
Chuang Hong-Jen' HRC 0
Hsieh Yu Bk 11
Jou Yow-Jen? [B4h3L? 0

! Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen retired as an independent non-executive

director on 29 December 2009.

Professor Jou Yow-Jen was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 29 December 2009

The criteria for appointment of a new director are set out
herein below:

) the independence in case of an independent non-
executive Director;

ii)  possess core competencies that meet the needs of the
Company; and

i)  be able to commit time and carry out duties and
responsibilities.
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The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendation of the appointment of new director during
the year to the Board as follows: —

i evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on the board and determine the role and desirable
competencies for a particular appointment in consultation
with the management;

ii.  conduct an interview with the potential candidate to
assess suitability and to ensure that the candidates are
aware of the expectations and the level of commitment

required;

iii.  evaluate the independence of Professor Jou You-Jen.

Process for the appointment of New Director

Evaluation Interview
Az T &

o skills o FRE - e assess suitability
e knowledge o ANk o FHEEEM

e experience o 1B e assess competent
e independence ¢ Bt o T{hAE

(if applicable) (ansEA)

Nomination committee activities during the year

Significant matters discussed by the Nomination Committee
are summarized as follows: —

o To assess the criteria of Professor Jou Yow-Jen and
undergo the above process as defined by the Nomination
Committee in appointing Professor Jou Yow-Jen as an
independent non-executive director of the Company;
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° To consider the re-election of the retiring directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting having regard to his
contribution and performance;

° To review and determine independency of an independent
non-executive director during the reviewing period,;

and

. To assess the effectiveness of the Board.

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee currently comprises Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
(Chairman), Mr. Wu |h Chen and Mr. Huang Te-Wei and
Mr. Chan Oi Fat.

The overall responsibility of the Committee is to ensure that the
Group complies with all the relevant rules, laws and regulation as
set in different jurisdiction and Listing Rules of Hong Kong.

Compliance Committee activities during the year

The Compliance Committee met four times during the year. The
major activities undertaken by the Committee were to oversee
the financial, legal, statutory and listing rules requirement,
internal control and corporate governance practices of the
Group.

The Compliance Committee reported their discussion and
recommendation to the Board periodically.
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Executive committee

An Executive Committee was established on 3 September
2007 the "Executive Committee”) with specific written terms
of reference and comprises five members, by whom three
are executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun,
Mr. Wu |h Chen, Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr. Chan Oi Fat and
Ms. Wu Pei Min.

The Executive Committee is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's businesses, the overall financial
performance of the Group in fulfillment of strategy, plans and
budgets and the Group capital expenditures as defined in the
terms of reference.

The Committee reports on these topics on its own conclusions
and recommendation to the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 July 2010. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for preparing the accounts and presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment for the Company's performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited acknowledged their

reporting responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2010.
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Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“"SHINEWING")
was appointed as the Group's auditors until the conclusion of
next annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 July 2010, the remuneration paid/
payable to SHINEWING in respect of their audit and non-audit
services were as follows:

A BB BN

P - (ERRA(EE) BB ARAT
(MEXRA)EREAFEBNERET - 55
T EREBFAGER -

HE_ZT-THFLA=1+T—BILEFER BHE
FtRIEEA IR E R, T Tk o R0 H B
m

2010

—B-ZF

HK$’'000

TERT

Audit services HETARTS 850
Non-audit services EBE RS

Taxation advisory services Tt 75 AL Pl AR 75 22

Other advisory services EH A B R AR 75 450

Total BET 1,322

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems. The internal control systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring the reliability of financial information used for business
and publication. Qualified management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

A

EXESREARERNNEERRNBARL - X
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The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited ("SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct a annual review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s material effectiveness of
the Company’s material internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management.
Audits were carried out on all significant business units of the
Group. The internal control report is submitted and reviewed
by the Audit Committee. In addition, internal audit’'s summary
of findings and recommendation are discussed at the Audit
Committee meeting with a view to improve the Group's
operations.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control and risk management
procedures and was satisfied that the Company’s internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, control
department is established to provide day-to-day management
of the compliance and control of the Group in order to eliminate
risks of failure of operational systems and the achievement of
the Company’s objectives. The control department is currently
headed by Mr. Huang Te-Wei, the executive Director of the
Company, and it reports directly to the Board.

Control department will conduct meeting regularly and work
closely with SHINEWING Risk to monitor the internal control
systems within the Group in order to provide reasonable
assurance as to the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
integrity and reliability of financial information and to safeguard
and maintain accountability of its assets. Additionally, the
various divisions’ head of the Company met with the head of
Control Department each month to ensure a sound internal
control system is in place and maintained. To enhance the
knowledge of relevant staffs of the Group, training will be
provided to them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable
laws as when appropriate.

Based on the internal control report, the Board is of the view
that the internal controls of the Group are adequate and
complied with the code provision on internal control as set
out in the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

AN AL £ \ZA

PEERWME

Risk management JEL B 5 1

The Group manages risk under an overall strategy determined AEERIBEZEEFSETHEERKEEIRRAR -
by the Board. The framework of the risk management comprises  EERIEEH T EZL AKX ¢
of the following key elements: —

e identify and assess of all the risks; o FBANLFZATA R

e formulate the risk management strategies; e HITFERBREIERE

e design and implement of risk management and plan; o  RETUWEMERKREENTE
*  monitor and report the risk management performance; o ERVWEREMERRIR

e continuous improvement of risk management and e SENE R R E E LR R R b E AT

mitigation action plans; 2
PROCESS POLICY ACCOUNTQBILITIES
BiE BR BE
risk identification, risk assessment risks are identified, assessed and all senior management are
control assessment responsed to responsible person responsible for risk management
[EBREER - BT - R RMEEALER Tk REHRER MEERERESERRER

i

RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK
RBREERE

MONITORING AND
REP%RTING DEVELOPMENT ASSL{I;%«NCE
5 ERLRE

reporting covers the impact, the senior management monitors annual assurance is provided
effectiveness of control measures to the risk process and supports and regarding the extent for compliance
deal with the risk develops the framework with risk management
RIRE T SRERREEZERBRE - REREENSRERRHIEF
RERBNTZE B TERBEREE RE
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The major risk factors assessed by the Group are listed as AEEFFENEERBEZRZINOT :
follows:

Risk Factors Mitigation
BREE ey
Strategic
g
Global economic instability e The Group's products The Company aimed to spread its
and market volatility could be curtailed which activities geographically to benefit
PIREEZR R T35 resulted in the risk of the ~ from opportunities in order to
operating performance minimize the risk of political and
and financial stability of economic instability
the Group AAFIH B ERBEERSHMETRM
AEBAREBERER B SURERTREHE - EmREBE &
MUBAREENEERER KEHEONEAR
R R
Increasing competition o Significant product The Group continuously to enhance
B NE innovations, technical its research and development and
advances or the regularly added new products to
intensification of sustain the growth of its business
competition could N B 5 4B DN oA B 3 K T BRHE T EE
adversely affect the AR H RS R
Group
EREmMEI - BIESE
ARG RO HAEE
ERAMFE
Integration of acquisition o We may not be successful  The management adopted risk
WhERS acquired business and assessment includes macro and

not reach the full synergy  project specific risks analysis

effects encompassing due diligence,

NEEL T EZ  financial modeling and sensitivity

% WEEEAEZAMN  analysis on key investment

CEVES assumptions and variables
ERERMERE  BERERER
R RMEERES  MBEEL
HU T EZREBRRNATERARNHRE
DT
The management is monitoring
the progress of strategic plan and
modifying the plan from time to time
BIE B LB R REE AT S| E I B
HETE
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Risk Factors
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Corporate Governance Report
PEBES ARG =

Mitigation
P

Operational Risk
EERRE

Seasonality

FHEME

Product liabilities
EmaE

Raw material

R

Customer

P

Seasonality may adversely
affect the operating
results of the Company'’s
business

ES UL RANYNCTE 373
R RABER TR 8
Product liabilities claims
could adversely affect our
Company's business
EmBEEREAHARA
BV R TSIER T E
Growth in cost and
expense in raw materials
changes may adversely
influence the future
results of the Company
AR T2 R KL B 3 48 1
PRI GHARFREKR
RBER IR 8

Loss of customers could
adversely affect our
business
BEFERAAI B I %
TSIER R 8

The Company aimed to diversify the
product mix to mininise the seasonal
risk
ARBINERBRRTERMEARESZ T
& - DUREZ=EF 1L /& B

The company has arranged insurance
to cover product liability

ARARERERBUNREERET

The company aims to maintain long-
terms business relationships with
suppliers to acquire raw material
ARFIM B RREHERGESRY
EERAR - ARG R H

The Company keep in close touch
with our customers and markets and
focus effort on delivery high quality
products to them
ARRBEEFRMGEILEEH
& YHOREPIRHELEER
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Financial

B3

Exchange Rate
Fluctuation

PE R REp

Financing and liquidity
constraints

BE NREE 2R H

Legal and Compliance

EBIR BEEE

Law and regulations

AR R B

Exchange rate fluctuation
can have harmful impact
on company

PE R B & AR RIERK
TREE

Lack of financial capacity
could affect the Group's
ability to conduct its
business and maintain

its capital investment or
dividend payments
IIREEN TR AIRE G B
SEETEBREREER
KESIRE R EBEE

The Group may suffer
as a results of its failure
to comply with all
applicable laws and
regulations
REELEEREET
BEAEDRBOITER
B

Pt
%

Please refer to the Audit Committee Report for the committee’s

activities in 2009/2010.
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The Company has a hedging policy
for certain currency exchange rate
risks from time to time
ARABTRRETEEREXRRET
SRR

The Company adopts prudent
financing treasury policy and strict
cash management policy to maintain
stable cash position

AR BFRREF RO BLE EBHR M
BENRSEERER  NERRR
BER AN

The control department assists in
identifying, monitoring and providing
support to identify and manage

legal risks across the legal and seek
external legal advisers as and when
appropriate
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Corporate social responsibility
Environmental protection & safety measures

To support the good environment support, the Group continues
to pursue a proactive policy in environmental protection
and have implemented a series of environmental protection
practices, details of which are as follows:

o Dongguan Ta Yang factory and Huzhou factory obtained
ISO 4001 certification;

o Install a discharge and sedimentation tank in our plants to
treat domestic sewage before discharging to the sewage
drains in the neighbourhood;

o Install noise-barriers in our electricity general rooms and
in the plants with air compression equipment respectively;
and

o install ventilating ducts to collect exhausted gases

generated during production processes before emitting
to the atmosphere.

In addition, the Group emphasizes on safe production measures.
These measures includes safely tips which sets out certain
guidelines on occupational safety such as safely production
measures and procedures for handling emergency. In order
to promote the safety awareness, the Group also organizes
induction training and occupational safety training for our staff.
The Group has regularly checked the equipments to ensure the
staff is working at safety place.

Green policies

We implement paper recyclying policy for papers in Hong Kong
and the PRC offices. Staffs are also encouraged to practice
energy saving habits, such as setting their computers to sleep
mode when not in use, controlling the temperature of air
conditions and using internal communication in the form of

electronic direct mail.

During the year, the Group successfully achieved in reducing
the usage of energy, water and paper.

RIERERZ 2B

BIXFRERFRE  AEBREHTEGS2
HIRFREZHOEELSIA—RINRFERE
ait c FEIBIT

o WERARFME FOHMNEEEFISO 4001
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Employment and social affairs

The Group places emphasis to retain talent staff by providing
annual bonus and annual dinner in Chinese Lunar Year.
Besides, the Group organizes basketball and Tug-of-war sports
competition, image girl competition each year to promote
the mutual cooperation and understanding among the staff.
There are also corporate orientation programmes to enable the
mainland staff to better understand the Group's culture.

Image girl Competition
EmIBRIR AR

Learning and development

During the year, the Group organized a training programme
to the staff in the PRC office focusing on the production
management areas. The programme gave them an excellent
opportunity to strengthen their understanding of the functional
areas within the factory in the PRC and strategic direction of the
Group to improve and enhance the efficiency of the Group.

In addition, the Company provides financial subsidies to
employees to attend seminar organized by different professional
bodies with the aims to enhance their technical skills, business
skills and personal strengths.

60 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED A ¥ % B Z R &R A 7

BT RitEiEN

AEBEBBRHEFERIEANEEFFHEFR
2 BRRBEETENET - I AEEE
FHERRERLE  JOTHLBERERTLE
8 RESHEAERINAE TR 2HAR
B REIMEEREOMETE  FAMWET
ET@RAKENXIL -

Annual Dinner in Chinese New Year
TE®RE

SEHER

0y A BB EENE T H B
B EIEA R AR R E LS - I
SHEIRR TIRGRME - ATHE LA IR o B
R E U RAEERBREN TR - AR
FH AR B E o

AN - RATRIAE B IR B A fhRE - BBHH S
AT R EXERABNTE - SR ER
MiEege - BMERBEARBARR -



INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of
the Company and investors. The Board also recognizes that
effective communication with investors is the key to establish
investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining high degree of transparency
to ensure the investors and the shareholders are receiving
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group via the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
press announcements, and also the Company's website at
www.tayang.com.

The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed the
Group's strategy, operations, management and plans.

The Company's website is also a source of information for
its shareholders and prospective shareholders. All materials
on annual reports, interim reports and announcements are
available on our website immediately following confirmation
of their release. The contact details of the Investor Relations
are also available on the Company's website which allows
shareholders to contact the Company easily.

The Directors and the committee members are available to
answer the questions through the annual general meeting.
External auditors are also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate
issue.

REERKRRBRE

EFESHREARRIBER MIREERFIBMH - &
RREMBRNEEN EFGITERERE
ENBRBBRDRUREERFORREIFIKE
EHRER - Bt - AEEBERRSERE N
BRIREE MR B BFR - RS - HE
NEH A KA R FH A8 Ihwww.tayang.com
BEEEE - BMT - 2 EERKHER -

EFEQHBEEFRRBIREE ROWEIEEH
AR BRENTAEENRE L2 B8
KEtél -

R AAEUE TR R AR B B R E B0 R
B o FH - RHME R AMEA BB K
R AR EARRRBUEME - AHERE
ERENBEF BT ERRRBIEER - A
77 (B AR AN AR AR

EXENZEENEREBRRAFAELER
B o SNERBEN TS ERRIBAFAG EOER
RIERE - RRAE L2 X EREEREE
BRFESR °

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZFF%H {1




Corporate Governance Report

AL Aol N/
TEERRE

Our investor relations activities include: AEEFANKREEBERIBEIE
e face to face meeting with analysts and fund managers; o HEAMMMESKBFRYESS
e teleconferences with analysts and fund managers; o HINWMEMMESLBFEEZSE

e financial results briefings with analysts and the mediato o  EADHEMAEEEI KL EEE R - F3
coincide with the press release; BRI EEERE

. update of the Company’s website regularly; o  TEHEHANRMBUL

*  broadcasting relevant information to investors through o FBANEBEEZF LB @R EE L MHER

the Group’s mailing lists; EHIR
e holding annual general meetings with shareholders; e  HRFHITRFBFAE

e providing disclosed information on a time basis via the o  EFFEBANT NMEZAAEIEEHRHE
Company and Stock Exchange’s website WEER

Regular Meeting
with Analysts and

Shareholders

Media Meeting
ER AT R R IR AR HETT RERE=H
EHEE

INVESTOR
RELATIONS
ACTIVITIES

Company's & ﬁfgjﬁﬁ &
Website /

NEIAL

Teleconference

Eren

Publish
Financial Reports,
Announcement
and Press Release
TR E
PPN
&L
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Shareholders’ right

The Annual General Meeting of the Company (the "AGM")
provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, the management and the external
auditors.

At 2009 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of
final dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment
of auditors, the authorization to grant the general mandate
to issue and repurchase of shares were proposed and all the
resolutions were conducted by poll and approved by the
shareholders. The results of the voting by poll were declared
at the meeting and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to
the Board of the Company by sending their written request to
the Company’s correspondence address in Hong Kong or the
Company's email address.

Significant changes in articles of association

During the year, there is no significant change to the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Shareholdings information
As at 31 July 2010

HK$2,000,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised Capital

HK$77,800,600 divided into
778,006,000 shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully-paid
up capital

Iz RV REF
AprlRRBERG(RRBAFARG DiE TR
Ritw  mEx FEERIMNEZEMEER
IR o

—EENFRRBEFASGLREZ2 T ERIRZE
R BRERAHAKRS BEEEF EHZ
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- AERBRGUARESARR YR
Rtk - REERCRE LM - W Rl
R RARBNBIEATE

BRAGEERZRLTEEARRETENE
FEHU R EBMI - FRAARTNEETSIRE
Hizigsd -

HEBERNEREH

Py - AR AR BT I T A EAEE -
BRER

JETERR AN 2,000,000,0007% 7T © &
/20,000,000,0004% & A%

0. 178 TR IR
BETK 77,800,600/ T O A
BB IEA 778,006,000/ fi%

0.1 TR 5
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The following table summarized the existing shareholding
structure of the Company as at 31 July 2010: -

TREFIARBHE T~

IERBRORBRE - —

TELA=+—A

% of issued
capital of the

Category No. of Shares Company?®
5l RBEE R NEIIEE- &6y

RAMHE DL
Controlling shareholders & Directors ~ ERBRENRES 438,580,000 56.37%
Strategic Investors' REIREE 24,180,000 3.11%
Public & connected persons? NS YN 315,246,,000 40.52%
Total et 778,006,000 100%

Notes:

T Strategic investors represent Mitsubishi and Shin-Etsu, which
held 12,180,000 shares and 12,000,000 shares respectively.

2. 68,152,000 shares out of 315,246,000 shares are held by certain
connected persons of the Group.

The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2010 is
778,006,000 shares.

BEST CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DISCLOSURE AWARD

In 2009, the Company was granted the Best Corporate
Governance Disclosure Gold Award in Non-Hang Index (middle
to small market capitalization) category organized by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

We constantly review and strengthen our corporate governance
practices to align ourselves with the international best corporate

practices standard.

et -

! I E E 455 B+ 512,180,0008% 12,000,000

BBt B =2 R fmi

2 315,246,0008% A% 17 #968,152,0000% A% 15
AEBETRIEATIEA -

> ARRBE-Z-—ZTFLA=+—HBHHEH
TR %778,006,0000% P& (5 °

RIEEFEELE R E AR

R-ZEZNF  ARAKEFTBSHMAGR
BRECFERBEHREARNE(F/)HEIE

BRI RAE R ) & 28

ARRTHEHILIEEREAER - UHFE

RIERIEREKF -
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Remuneration Committee Report

This report provides the details of work undertaken by the
Remuneration Committee (the “RC") during the year.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year, the directors who served on the RC were
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor
Jou Yow-Jen. All of them are independent non-executive
directors.

Members of the RC have no personal interest in the Committee’s
decisions and they have no conlflict of interest arising from cross
directorship.

ACTIVITIES OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year, the RC met four times and the major business
of those meetings included the following activities:

o conducting the annual review of annual salaries and bonus
(if any) for all executive directors and making appropriate
recommendation to the Board;

° consider and determine the remuneration package

of Executive Director and making appropriate

recommendation to the Board;

o recommend the pay adjustment for the year 2010 in
accordance with the remuneration policy of the Group.
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Remuneration Committee Report
SMER GRS
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration for the executive directors comprises basic
salary, bonus, share options and pensions.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration
Committee takes into account performance of the individual,
contribution, responsibilities, and reference to comparable
listed companies in Hong Kong.

The remuneration of independent non-executive director is
reviewed annually with reference to the salary research survey,
comparable companies and market condition.

Apart from basic salary, executive directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and
individual's performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate talented eligible staff,
including the Directors, the Company has adopted a Share
Option Scheme. The scheme enables the eligible persons to
obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus will
motivate them to optimize their continuing contributions to
the Group.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
executive directors and senior management

R

HITEFNFMERELTS - B4
FRKE °

- B HE

FINZE e FLF S RER - @R ENA
iE’\JI{’Ei’%fﬁ R BER2EZA AT
FELEHRA] -

BAFRITEENFHM 2 EHSHRTAS
A BB AR LSRR ESFRET -

BREAFEIN  WITEFTREEHSERER
BYISIEAL - EZBREM SN - FREERE
ARBREREME °

AABCIRNBERT B ARS! - 858 KA
BEARMEERAB(BEES) - &t SR

REBATAEBARR A EER - KM

BREEERAEEBRME

TRIARTESFLSRERBFME 2T
=

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
] B 2R BURFHIE
Basic Salary To reflect the market value e Cash payment * Reviewed annually
EX%e of each individual AN BFERE
RMEGEATHTSERE e Monthly e Compare against
B H selected comparable
companies
SN §ad 2N
LhER
* Market trend
MI58[R
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Remuneration Purpose

A BE

Remuneration Committee Report

Reward

R

= 2 &
ZEERE

8

Policy details
BURF 1B

Discretionary Bonus ~ To motivate employees to

BB FEAL deliver the high levels of
performance of the Company
and individual
performance goals

SR B ERS KT RA]

REAKRBIR
Share Option To motivate the participants
R wE2EE

To attract and retain
the employees

Wl R EEER

Pension To provide appropriate
BRE and competitive post
retirement benefits
REEE MEBRSH
RIKIZTEF)

2010 Executive Director Pay Mix
B

—E - EERTEEF

53.82%

e Cash Payment
B

e Annual
5

e Share Option
BB R

e Cash contribution
b AT N

e  Monthly
g H

31.60%

e Individual performance
EARR

e Market condition
ik W)

e The Group performance
relative to corporate
targets

SEXRBRLEBFERSE

e Eligible participants
are awarded in
accordance
with the Share
Option Scheme
A EB2HERE
HEAR AT B &S 2 52/

e MPF scheme
REEETE

Salary Allowances & other . Bonus . Share Options

benefits TE4L B
e R REAMBT

Retirement Scheme

Contribution (“MPF")
RRFEIER(aEE])
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Remuneration Committee Report
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The following table shows the breakdown of directors’
remuneration (in percentage terms) for the year ended

TREIRNBE-_T-TFLA=T—HLHF
FEEMENRAABDLRTR):

31 July 2010:
Salary
Allowances
& other Retirement
benefits Scheme  Share-based
English Name MR Fees H& 2H Bonus Contributions ~ payments Total
EygE BE  REAERN A BUGHELR BREGR CH
% % % % % %
Huang Sheng-Shun ERR - 45.86% 43.07% 0.40% 10.67% 100%
Wu Th Chen REH - 53.33% 34.48% 0.47% 11.72% 100%
Huang Te-Wei L - 59.24% 23.10% 0.97% 16.69% 100%
Lin Hung-Ming HER - 51.02% 36.06% 0.65% 12.27% 100%
Wong Tak Leung BER - 59.63% 21.27% 1.00% 18.10% 100%
Kirk Yang ol 87.80% - - - 12.20% 100%
Hsieh Yu Gk 82.76% - - - 17.24% 100%
Jou Yow-Jen A9y 100% - - - - 100%
Yeung Chi Tat hHE 87.80% - - - 12.20% 100%

Details of the amount of Directors’ remuneration during the year
ended 31 July 2010 are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements and details of the Share Option Scheme
and grant of options by the Company during the year are set

out in Report of the Directors and Note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)

Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

Hong Kong 18 October 2010

68 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED A ¥ % B2 G R A 7

Bl e

Aay

REFERER

BEgmKE

BERE(LE)

AN
:%/T\I:l

FEE_T-TF+HTN\A

BE_T-ZFLA=-+-BILFENESH
R RBEIIN R A M B RERME16 - M
Pt 8 AR R R R B BRER B ED
PTG EHRARMIFE32



Audit Committee Report

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee
(the "AC") and the work it has undertaken by them during
the year. The main role of the AC mainly assist the Board
in discharging its responsibilities for the integrity of the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements, the assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control and monitored the
independence of the external auditors.

The members of the AC during the year were:

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Mr. Hsieh Yu
Professor Jou Yow-Jen

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee met two times during the year. Members'
attendance at the meetings held during the year is set out
on page 47. The financial controller and the external auditors
normally attended the meeting by invitation.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR WORKS DONE
DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the major works done by AC were summarized
as follows:

o reviewed with the management and the external auditors
on the interim results and annual results and related
announcement including the related disclosures, integrity
of financial reporting and the accounting policies and
adopted by the Group prior to the submission to the
Board's approval;

BEREEEHE

st AEREZZEe([BEREZE S DR

BENFRARATETIENFE - EXZE SN
TERARHHEFTSRTRE  BREEREX
RAFEMBHRROTEE - FHERBTEE
ERGAMME - ARERABEIENE L
K SRR SN L BED B AR
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BEERE(EE)
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BEVEZEgWmE

o discussed with management on significant judgments
affecting Group's consolidated financial statements;

o considered and pre-approved the re-appointment of
auditors and their audit fee accordingly;

° reviewed and discussed the internal control report
including the status of implementing recommendations
on previous report;

. reviewed, assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management; and

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor's

independence and objectivity and the effectiveness

during the audit process

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The AC has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the financial
reporting matters including a review of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2010.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the AC engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited (the “SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct the internal control
review of the Group’s operation and made recommendation to
Board accordingly. Based on the report issued by SHINEWING
Risk, the AC considered that the key areas of the Company’s
internal control systems are reasonably implemented and the
Company has compiled with the requirements of the CG code
as set out in the Listing Rules in respect of internal control.
There were no matters concerns to be bring to the attention
to the Board.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The AC reviewed the independence of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited and recommended their re-appointment as auditors of
the Group for the financial year 2010/2011 in the forthcoming
AGM.

Members of Audit Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Hsieh Yu

Jou Yow-Jen

Hong Kong 18 October 2010

Audit Committee Report
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are design and manufacture of silicone rubber input devices
which are mainly used in 4Cs (i) Consumer (consumer electronic
devices), (ii) Computers (keypads for computers and notebooks)
(i) Communications (mobile phone handsets) and (iv) Cars
(automotive peripheral products). Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. The nature of the principal activities of the Group
has not changed during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2010 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 106.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK6 cents per ordinary share, totally HK$46.6 million. The final
dividend is expected to be paid to those shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
23 November 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$31,191,000
on additions to property, plant and equipment mainly for the
expansion and enhancement of its production capability.

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 201.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 July 2010, the Company's reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$636,204,000. Movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year and
the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 July 2010
are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 60.1% of the total revenue of the Group
and the largest customer accounted for about 23.6% of the
total revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted
for approximately 8.6% and 31.2% of the Group's total purchase
for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EERHS

DIRECTORS 55
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the FRNEEAREBRL  KRRESEA

date of this report were:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman) EETREE(FE)

Mr. Wu Ih Chen (Chief Executive Officer) REBSTE(TTHAES)

Mr. Lin Hung-Ming MRRFEE

Mr. Wong Tak Leung BIERSE

Mr. Huang Te-Wei =EREE

Non-Executive Director FHITES

Mr. Kirk Yang 1HIEB A

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHITES

Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen (retired on 29 December 2009) HRCEER—TETNF+ A=+ NHEMD
Mr. Hsieh Yu AR

Professor Jou Yow-Jen (appointed on 29 December 2009) B (R —EZNF+ A -t hBEZD)
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BEESSE

Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, RIER R AIMMAKSIZES7IE » =LA
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, Mr. Huang Te-Wei and Mr. Hsieh Yu @&t MR AL BRERT - A4S
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for I FEENERERFBAFAE FERET -
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
to Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) and as at the date
of this report still considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 July 2010, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, and decided
by the Board, as authorised by shareholders in the annual
general meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and comparable market securities. No Director is
involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme
and a Post-IPO share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out under the heading “Share Option Schemes”.

Details of the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in Remuneration Report
under the heading “Remuneration Policy”.
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Report of the Directors
EERHS

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year under review are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

Directors’ Interests

As at 31 July 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

(a) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares in  (a) RARXATRHREERGDWETE
the Company

Number of shares/underlying
shares held in the Company

RAQATDEENRG,TEERDEE
Approximate
percentage of
Equity issued share
Capacity in which Interests in derivatives capital of
Name of Director interests are held shares (Share Options) ~ Total interests  the Company® NOTES
EEpg BFEREEN R ip R [N RRBE EX07E s
g% TETA BITRA®
(RERAE) BHE DS
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of 413,940,000/ 1,300,000 422,740,000 54.34% 1&2
= Sunshiny Trust/ 7,500,000 1k2
Beneficial Owner
Sunshiny TrustZ5E A/
ERBBA
Wu lh Chen Beneficial Owner 1,500,000 1,205,000 2,705,000 0.35%
REH ERBEA
Lin Hung-Ming Beneficial Owner 9,640,000 920,000 10,560,000 1.36%
TR ERBEA
Wong Tak Leung Beneficial Owner 5,760,000 875,000 6,635,000 0.85%
BER ERBEA
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of 413,940,000/ 830,000 415,010,000 53.34% Tto3
EER Sunshiny Trust/ 240,000 123
Beneficial Owner
Sunshiny TrustS & A,/
ERBEEA
Kirk Yang Beneficial Owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01%
G ERBBEA
Hsieh Yu Beneficial Owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01%
#ia ERBEA
Yeung Chi Tat Beneficial Owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01%
BEE ERBEA
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Hit

Notes:

On 1 Febraury, 2010, Huang Trust sub-settled the shares
to Sunshiny Trust. Sunshiny Trust is a discretionary trust,
of which Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is the settlor, Hang Seng
Bank Trustee (International) Limited (the “Hang Seng
Bank Trustee”) is the trustee and family members of
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (including Mr. Huang Te-Wei) are
beneficiaries.

The 413,940,000 shares, representing approximately
53.19% shareholding of the Company, are directly held
by the following seven British Virgin Islands companies
("7 BVI Companies”) in aggregate as follows:

RZZT—ZTF-_A—H0 BaXE7FH8
f% 17 8 5€ 2= Sunshiny Trust © Sunshiny
TrustR 2 BER EBREER
LA BERTEAEBEERAA
(MBERITEFTDRETEA - MERH
TEENKGEKE (BREEEREE)RT
#mA e

$2413,940,0000% % 7 - BD A& & & 49
53.19%MIHE - AU TEREBRELX
HEAR([EREBREZESARDA
FTEERA  FBT

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

Name of the 7 BVI Companies No. of Shares held of the Company®
IREBRLBENEER BERGEAE EERAR BT

LN
Ace Chain Investments Corporation (“Ace Chain”) 149,100,000 19.16%
China Gain Holdings Limited (“China Gain") 103,560,000 13.31%
Highwise Investment Group Corporation (“Highwise”) 57,600,000 7.40%
Join Success Business Inc. (“Join Success”) 34,560,000 4.44%
Jumbo Regent Investment Limited (“Jumbo Regent”) 34,560,000 4.44%
Master Rich Business Limited (“Master Rich") 28,800,000 3.70%
Million Era Holding Corporation (“Million Era") 5,760,000 0.74%
Total#& 5+ 413,940,000 53.19%

The 7 BVI Companies are respectively 100% owned
subsidiaries of Acuwake Enterprises Limited (the
"Acuwake”). Acuwake is 100% owned by Bluebell Global
Enterprises Limited. (“Bluebell”). Bluebell is wholly owned
by Hang Seng Bank Trustee. Hang Seng Bank Trustee as
trustee of Sunshiny Trust, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun as the
settlor of Sunshiny Trust are taken to be interested in such
shares. Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is also a director of each
of the 7 BVI Companies.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE
3. Mr. Huang Te-Wei is a son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and 3. EERLEREBREENTEF W
a beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei #Sunshiny Trustf) & & A © It
is taken to be interested in the same block of 413,940,000 EEREEERARBEREBEZE
shares held by the 7 BVI Companies. SR AIF A H[E —#£413,940,000% %
R RER
4. Details of the Directors’ interests in the share options 4. EERNARABRLNEREREENER
granted by the Company are set out under the heading FBEEHR T ESWERO AR —
“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below. ff o
5. The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2010 is 5. ARBR-_E—ZEF+A=+—HAE
778,006,000 shares. BITARZ /778,006,000 B 17 ©
Details of the Directors’ interests in the share options BEERNARRMKHBEREPESF
granted by the Company are set out under the heading BEHA T ESKEROOERN]—
“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below. g o
Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares EEWEROER
Number of
Shares  Approximate
Exercise Period Exercise price subject to  percentage of
(subject to Balance as at ~ Grant during per share  outstanding the Company's
Name of Director Date of Grant  vesting period) 1.8.2009 the period HK$ options issued capital®
EsfE RHAM BrfE RZBRAE HARE  SROKE W RATHE BELT
(REBHAR) NA-H Br  BREFSR BROREN
ife 3 MRGBE  BOEIMS
Huang Sheng-Shun 16.05.2007 08.06.2009 - 550,000 - 220 550,000 0.07%
Bl 15.05.2017
24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 750,000 0.96 750,000 0.09%
2312.2010
1,300,000 0.16%
Wu Ih Chen 16.05.2007 08.06.2009 - 455,000 - 220 455,000 0.06%
REA 15.05.2017
24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 750,000 0.96 750,000 0.09%
2312.2019
1,205,000 0.15%
Huang Te-wei 16.05.2007 08.06.2009 - 230,000 - 220 230,000 0.03%
RIEA 15.05.2017
24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 600,000 0.96 600,000 0.08%
2312.2019
830,000 0.11%
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Number of
Shares  Approximate
Exercise Period Exercise price subject to  percentage of
(subject to Balance as at  Grant during per share  outstanding the Company's
Name of Director Date of Grant  vesting period) 1.8.2009 the period HK$ options issued capital®
EpE REAH BATE R-BENE Bagkt  BROEE WARITE BELT
(RBBAFR) NA-R B BREFSR EROREN
ke WROME  BOEIHS
Lin Hung-Ming 16.05.2007 08.06.2009 - 320,000 - 220 320,000 0.04%
HEH 15.05.2017
24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 600,000 0.96 600,000 0.08%
2312.2019
920,000 0.12%
Wong Tak Leung 16.05.2007 08.06.2009 - 275,000 - 220 275,000 0.03%
ARR 15.05.2017
24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 600,000 0.96 600,000 0.08%
2312.2019
875,000 0.11%
Kirk Yang 24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 100,000 0.96 100,000 0.01%
IR 23.12.2019
Hsieh Yu 24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 100,000 096 100,000 0.01%
Bkt 23122019
Yeung Chi Tat 24.12.2009 24.06.2010 - - 100,000 0.96 100,000 0.01%
hisE 23.12.2019
Further details of the share options are set out in the REIRENEMFEE N TN Bt
section headed “Share Option Schemes” below. B —%F -
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(b) MADEEBOEEREREDS

Percentage of
the relevant
associated

Number of corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity in which shares issued share
Name of Director  corporation* interests are held Class of shares interested capital
EpE REEEER BEEENSH RGER BEERN GEBARLE
RG#A BRIRAN
Epips
Huang Sheng- Shun  Hang Seng Bank Trustee as Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
B trustee of Sunshiny Trust ~ Sunshiny Trustf)Z3EA US$1.00 each
BAERTERER BiR1.00F T8 E Bk
Sunshiny TrustfI{EEEA
Acuwake Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZFEA US$1.00 each
BiR1.00FTH L Bk
Ace Chain Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZFEA US$1.00 each
BiR1.00FTH L Bk
China Gain Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZFEA US$1.00 each
BiR1.00FTH L Bk
Highwise Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZFEA US$1.00 each
BiR1.00FTH L Bk
Join Success Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)ZFEA US$1.00 each
BR1.00FTTH L Bk
Jumbo Regent Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)ZFEA US$1.00 each
BR1.00FTH L Bk
Master Rich Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)ZFEA US$1.00 each
BiR1.00FTH L Bk
Million Era Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfZFEA US$1.00 each

BIR1.00% T BB
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Percentage of
the relevant

associated
Number of  corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity in which shares  issued share
Name of Director  corporation* interests are held Class of shares interested capital
32 REEAER KERENSH RGER REREN (HEARLE
RHBE  ERAREH
(Rl
Huang Te-Wei Hang Seng Bank Trustee as  Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
EER trustee of Sunshiny Trust ~ Sunshiny Trustf)Z& A US$1.00 each
BERTIERER BR1.005% A0 BR
Sunshiny TrustE)EFEA
Acuwake Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BR1.00E T E B
Ace Chain Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US§1.00 each 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)¥z A BR1.00ETHE B
China Gain Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US§1.00 each 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)¥ 2 A BR1.00E T E R
Highwise Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US§1.00 each 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustE) X 2 A BR1.00E A LR
Join Success Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)¥ 2 A BR1.00E T E R
Jumbo Regent Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)¥ 2 A BR1.00ETHE B
Master Rich Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustB)X 2 A BR1.00E A ERR
Million Era Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each 1 100%

Sunshiny TrustB)X 2 A

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED A ¥ £ EZE R B R A 7

BR10XTHERR



*Note:

For details of the corporate structure of each of the associated
companies, please see Notes 1 and 2 of the sub-section headed
"(a) Long positions in Shares and underlying shares held in the
Company”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2010, none of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company nor their respective
associates had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company maintains two share option schemes, namely the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of recognising the contribution of
certain executive directors and employees of the Group and
retaining them for the continual operation and development
of the Group. Both schemes were approved by the written
resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 16 May 2007
and had a life of 10 years from its adoption.

Under the Share Option Schemes, the Board may, at its
discretion, offer any employee (including any Executive
Director) of the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in

the two schemes.
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The Pre-IPO Share Option

(a)

Purpose of the Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO share option scheme
on 16 May 2007 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan is to recognise
the contribution made by the executive directors and the
employees of the Company prior to the listing of shares
of the Company on Stock Exchange.

Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company and/or any its subsidiaries,
including any executive director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries but excluding any non-executive director
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares in respect of the Scheme may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
9,070,000 shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme of
the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period must not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

An option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable at the subscription price of HK$2.20
per Share (subject to adjustment and vesting period).
If a grantee does not cease to be Participant from the
date of grant of options (i.e. 16 May 2007) to him up to
the business date immediately prior to the date of the
1st anniversary ("Anniversary”) of the Listing Date, the
grantee may exercise up to 1/5 of the options granted to
him on or after the date of the 1st Anniversary. In the event
that the grantee does not cease to be a Participant up
to the business day prior to the date of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th
and 5th Anniversary, he is entitled to exercise an addition
of up to 1/5 of the options granted to him on or after the
relevant date of Anniversary respectively.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$2.20 per share representing
approximately 37.1% discount to the international offering
price (assuming the offer price is the maximum of HK$3.50
per share).

Payment on acceptance of option

Anon-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant of an option is required to be paid by each
of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Plan have no remaining life
as no further options may be granted but the provisions
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in force and effect and options which
are granted during the life on the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme may continue to exercise in accordance with the
respective terms of issue.

On 16 May 2007, the Company granted 9,070,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No further
options would be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on or after the listing date of the Company i.e.
8 June 2007.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted
on 16 May 2007 ("Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were
summarised as follows:

(a)

Purpose of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge
The Post-IPO

Share Option Scheme will provide the participants an

the contribution of the participants.

opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives:

® motivate the participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;

and

®  attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Participants of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme include
(i) eligible employees (whether full time or part time
employee including any executive director) of the Group
and any invested entity; (i) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity;
(i) any suppliers of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any customer of the
Group or any member of the Group (v) any consultant,
advisor, manager, officer or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any invested entity.
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Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all option to be granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue at the date of approval of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (i.e. 16 May 2007). The Company may seek
approval of the shareholders in general meeting to renew
the said 10% limit such that the total number of shares
in respect of options that may be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval to renew the limit. Notwithstanding the above,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue in respect there of is 69,050,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 8.88% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the date this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period must not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
Any further grant of options in excess of the said 1%
limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates
abstaining from voting.
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(e)

Timing of exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
and in any event such period shall not be longer than 10
years after the date of grant of the option.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is such
price as determined by the Board of the Company at
the time of the grant of the options, but in any case the
subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

® the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date on which the options
are offered, which must be a business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the options; and

J the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of offer.

Payment on acceptance of options

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant of an option is required to be paid by each of
the grantee upon acceptance of the granted options.
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Duration of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years from its adoption date
(i.e. 16 May 2007). However, the Company may terminate
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme prior to such period
and in such event no further option may be granted but
options granted prior to such termination shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms
of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As 31 July 2010, the outstanding number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was 10,540,000 shares,
representing 1.36% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.

The other principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus
of the Company.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:
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Option Type Date of Grant Exercise Period Exercise price
BB IR Al R B 1T1E5H TIEE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 16 May 2007 08.06.2009 - HK$2.20
("Share Option Scheme 1") —EEFRATIHE 15.05.2017 2.20787T
BRAFEEABREE
(TR RT3 )
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme 24 December 2009 24.06.2010 - HK$0.96
("Share Option Scheme I1") —EENF+_A=1+WMA 23.12.2019 0.9675 7T
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The following table disclose movements in the share options i/ - BEREME BN TRIFFE ¢
during the period:

Option to subscribe for shares of the company

TRBAAARGHERE
Exercise
period Exercise
Category or Balance Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance  (subject price
name of as at during during during asat  to vesting per share
grantees Option type 1.8.2009  the period  the period  the period  31.7.2010  period) HK$
ARANSHALE BRESH RZBEAE  HARE HBREXR  HBREAR R-2-3F  GEH BRTEE
NA-H tA=t-8  (SHBHAR) AT
NE&E i3
DIRECTORS
2
Huang Sheng-Shun Share Option Scheme | 550,000 - - - 550,000  08.06.2009 - 2.20
Bl BE 8 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme I - 750,000 - - 750,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
A 2312.2019
1,300,000
Wu Ih Chen Share Option Scheme | 455,000 - - - 455,000  08.06.2009 - 2.20
REWH BRE B 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme I - 750,000 - - 750,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
R 2312.2019
1,205,000
Huang Te-Wei Share Option Scheme | 230,000 - - - 230,000  08.06.2009 - 2.20
AR BE B 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme I - 600,000 - - 600,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
B EN 2312.2019
830,000
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Option to subscribe for shares of the company
TRRALARGNBRE
Exercise
period Exercise
Category or Balance Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance  (subject price
name of as at during during during asat  to vesting per share
grantees Option type 1.8.2009  the period  the period  the period  31.7.2010  period) HKS
ARANS AL A BRESH R-EERE  HARE  BAEAR  AREHE R-F-BF 6N BRTEE
NA-B tA=t-B (XBEAKR) AL
NE&& ik
Lin Hung-Ming Share Option Scheme | 320,000 - - - 320,000 08.06.2009 - 2.20
RS FE B 1505.2017
Share Option Scheme |l - 600,000 - - 600,000 24.06.2010 - 0.96
BRETE 23122019
920,000
Wong Tak Leung Share Option Scheme | 275,000 - - - 275000 08.06.2009 - 2.20
&R E B 15052017
Share Option Scheme |l - 600,000 - - 600,000 24.06.2010 - 0.96
BRETE 23.12.2019
875,000
Kirk Yang Share Option Scheme |l - 100,000 - - 100,000 24.06.2010 - 0.96
1Al E B 23.12.2019
Hsieh Yu Share Option Scheme || - 100,000 - - 100000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
EiEa BRETE 23.12.2019
Yeung Chi Tat Share Option Scheme | - 100,000 - - 100000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
i AN 23122019
Total for Directors 1,830,000 3,600,000 - - 5,430,000

it
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Option to subscribe for shares of the company
TREALARGNERE
Exercise
period Exercise
Category or Balance Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance  (subject price
name of as at during during during asat  to vesting per share
grantees Option type 1.8.2009  the period  the period  the period  31.7.2010  period) HKS
ARANS AL A BRESH RZ2BAE  BAEE  BREXM  HREAR R-E-ZE R4 BRITKE
NB-R th=1t-8 (XBEEFR) AL
W& i3]
Employees Share Option Scheme | 5,255,000 - (25,0000 - 4,830,000  08.06.2009 - 2.20
[E8 DG HE] 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme |l - 7,350,000 (346,000 (20,0000 6984000  24.06.2010 - 096
BRETE 23.12.2019
Total for Employees 5,255,000 7,350,000 (771,000) (20,0000 11,814,000
EE&5f
All Categories Share Option Scheme | 7,085,000 - (425,000) - 6,660,000  08.06.2009 - 2.20
AR R 2 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme |l - 10,950,000 (346,000) (20,0000 10,584,000  24.06.2010 - 096
B A 23122019
Total 7,085,000 10,950,000 (771,000) (20,000) 17,244,000
&3t
Notes: Kt -
1. The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately 1. RATIIRGD R BE IR R R 80195 H BB AR

before the date on which the share options were granted under
Share Option Scheme Il was HK$0.90 per share.

2. The vesting period of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is from 2.
the date of grant until the comment of the exercise period.

3. The vesting period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is from 3.
the date of grant until the exercise of the period.

4. The share options were held by a grantee who ceased to be the 4.

employee of the Group during the period.
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5. No share option was cancelled during the period.

6. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised was HK$1.16.

Save as disclosed above, no share options was granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO share option
Scheme.

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS
GRANTED DURING THE YEAR

The valuation of share options granted during the year is set
out in Note 32 the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 July 2010, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons have an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares

As at 31 July 2010, so far as is known to the Directors of the
Company, the following, not being a Director or the Chief
Executive of the Company, have an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares and Underlying

Shares

RGO RAARRD VTR

Percentage of
interest
as to the

Number of Number of issued share
shares held in  shares subject capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company to options Total Company NOTE(S)
REEE BaftE BERAARGEE BRESR @t HELAFE (i
HRA%E BAORAY
BiE MY
Acuwake Enterprises Limited Interest of controlled corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 1
REH AR
Bluebell Global Enterprises Limited Interest of controlled corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 1
REH AR
Hang Seng Bank Trustee Trustee of Sunshiny Trust 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 1&4
International Limited Sunshiny TrustH{EFEA R4
BAERTETERERAA
Hang Seng Bank Limited Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 4&5
BERTERAR REHARER 415
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking  Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 5
Corporation Limited sz E R
ABLSEERTERAA
HSBC Asia Holdings BV Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 5
REH AR
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 5
REH AR
HSBC Holdings BV Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 5
REH AR
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 5
REH AR ER
HSBC Holdings plc Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.21% 5
EEERERAR REH AR
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Percentage of

interest
as to the
Number of Number of issued share
shares held in  shares subject capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company to options Total Company NOTE(S)
RREH REME RERLARGHE BREVR 3t EALFE fizE
MRHHE BITREM
EEAAHY
Ace Chain Investments Corporation  Beneficial interests 149,100,000 - 149,100,000 19.16% 1
BalER
China Gain Holdings Limited Beneficial interests 103,560,000 - 103,560,000 13.31% 1
BalER
Highwise Investment Group Beneficial interests 57,600,000 - 57,600,000 7.40% 1
Corporation EiEn
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of Sunshiny Trust 413,940,000 - 422,740,000 54.34% 2
EBR Sunshiny Trust#)Z A
Beneficial interests 7,500,000 1,300,000
BalER
Tong Mei-Jen Spouse interests 413,940,000/ 1,300,000 422,740,000 54.34% 3
EXY FiBER 7,500,000
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of Huang Trust 413,940,000/ - 415,010,000 53.34% 10
A BRERHREA 240,000
Beneficial interests 830,000
BalER
Chao Yu Ting Spouse interests 413,940,000/ 830,000 415,010,000 53.34% N
HER FiBER 240,000
Wu Pei Min Corporate Interests 60,120,000 - 60,365,000 7.76% 6to8
R RElER %28
Beneficial Interests - 245,000
BalER
Wu Chung-chieh, Jack Corporate interests 57,600,000 - 57,672,000 7.41% 6&9
R RAlER 6%9
Beneficial interests 32,000 40,000
BalER

Annual Report 2010 —E—Z 443 QF




Notes:

M

The 413,940,000 shares relate to the same block of shares in the
Company. These shares were directly held by the 7 BVI companies,
all of which were wholly-owned by Acuwake Enterprises Limited
("Acuwake) which in turn was wholly-owned by Bluebell Global
Enterprises Limited (“Bluebell). Bluebell was wholly-owned
by Hang Seng Bank Trustee as trustee of Sunshiny Trust. Ace
Chain Investments Corporation, China Gain Holdings Limited
and Highwise Investment Group Corporation are three of the 7
BVI companies which hold their respective shareholding of the
Company directly as detailed in the above table. For details of
the interests of Sunshiny Trust in the Company, please refer to
Notes 1 and 2 of the sub-section headed “(a) Long positions
in Shares and underlying Shares in the Company” under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests” in
the above.

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun as settlor of Sunshiny Trust is taken to
have an interest in such shares. Details of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun’s
share options, please refer to sub-section headed “Share
Option Scheme” for details. Homelink sub-settled the shares
on 1 February 2010 to Sunshiny Trust of which Hang Seng Bank
Trustee is the trustee, please refer to Note 1 of the sub-section
headed “(a) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares in
the Company” under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests” in the above.

Ms. Tong Mei-Jen, the spouse of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun,
is also deemed to be interested in such shares which

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is interested in.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank
Limited was owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited was
wholly owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV which was a wholly
owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited. HSBC Asia
Holdings (UK) Limited was wholly owned by HSBC Holdings BV
which in turn was wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands).
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) was a wholly owned subsidiary of
HSBC Holdings plc.
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(1

(12)

57,600,000 shares out of 60,120,000 shares are beneficially-
owned by Golden King Holdings Limited and Joint Kingdom
International Holdings Limited which were 50% held by
Ms. Wu Pei Min and 50% held by Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack
respectively. Accordingly, Ms. Wu Pei Min and Mr. Wu Chung-
chieh, Jack are deemed to have beneficial interests in all these
shares by virtue of SFO.

2,520,000 shares out of 60,120,000 shares were held by a company
wholly owned by Ms. Wu Pei Min. Therefore, Ms. Wu is deemed
to be beneficially interested in all these shares.

95,000 shares out of 245,000 shares represent shares exercisable
pursuant to the options granted to Ms. Wu Pei Min on 16 May 2007
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company and
which is exercisable at a price of HK$2.20 per share during the
period from 8 June 2009 to 15 May 2017.

The 150,000 shares out of 245,000 shares represent shares
exercisable pursuant to options granted to Ms. Wu Pei Min
on 24 December 2009 under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme of the Company which is exercisable at a price of
HK$0.96 per share during the period from 24 June 2010 to
23 December 2010.

The 40,000 shares represent shares exercisable pursuant to options
granted to Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack on 24 December 2009
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company which
is exercisable at a price of HK$0.96 per share during the period
from 24 June 2010 to 23 December 2010.

Mr. Huang Te-Wei is the son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and
a beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei is
taken to be interested in the 413,940,000 shares directly held
by the 7 BVI Companies as controlled companies of Sunshiny
Trust. Details of Mr. Huang Te-Wei's share options, please refer
to sub-section headed “Share Option Schemes” for details.

Ms. Chao Yu Ting is the spouse of Mr. Huang Te-Wei and
accordingly is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which
Mr. Huang Te-Wei is interested in.

As at 31 July 2010, the issued share capital of the Company is
778,006,000 shares

(10)

)

(12)

60,120,0008% & 3 & #57,600,0008% B 15
HiGolden King Holdings Limited &Joint
Kingdom International Holdings Limited
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Ko R 5T IR RS 5 S B R B B8 B
AEZERDTHAER -

60,120,0000% B% 15 = #92,520,0008% A%
SMR/NEEEREN—HAREFER -
It RMAWR BRI BZEROTHEEE
iy

BX

245,0000% % 19 #1 #995,0000% $& 7] 77 {8 f% 15
VAR B AN R A B R A B R & B B AR M 5 B
RZZEZELFRATAAABEFRAERNDA
R EMEGHRG  AREERZEITR
—EENFRNANEBEZZE—LFHA
+ 1 A HR IR S AR2 208 T AR 1T1E ©

245,0000% % 15 H #9150,0000% 46 ] 1T {5 f% 15
BRI AR R B XA ERBRERZN
ZEZAF+ A tHEARTFRMER/NNE
BEERBEMEBGHKRG  AREERBZEITR
TE-EFEXNA-FTHAE-_Z-ZTF+_8
=+ = B HRR TR 0.96 B L BT -

40,000/ AT TTE AR - BIRIEA R R B X
AHBEERBEREFER=_ZTNF+=A
ZHHUBETFRAPGEERNEREMRSE
Wi Hh  EEBBREAIR - —ZF A
ZtHBEEZE-EF+ A=+ =HHHE
L FIR0.96 TTE EARIT(E -

BRI A RE B E MR F RSunshiny
Trustf) 2z A o B - SEEEEHEEER
Bt R EBE RS 2 Al (A& XSunshiny
TrustiZ Hl 19 2 B ) B # 5 5 #9413,940,000%
BOFPHAEER - AEEREREENERE
BRETS » 2B AR &I 15 8D -

H2EZTAERESLENRRS - BHibFR
BARERBEERARENME RN %
B -

RZZE—ZTFLA=Z+—H AREHNDH
1TR% A 778,006,000 A% 15

Annual Report 2010 ZZ —ZF F#

97




Report of the Directors
EEGWE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2010, the directors and
the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
person who has an interest or short position in the Shares,
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
or the chief executives of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party and in which a Director of the Company had material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of or at any time during the year, nor had there been any
contract of significance entered into between the Group and a
controlling shareholder of the Company during the year ended
31 July 2010.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 July, 2010, the Company repurchased
a total of 23,096,000 ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate consideration of
HK$30,426,000. Out of 23,096,000 shares repurchased, a total
of 1,082,000 shares has not yet been cancelled by the Company.
The nominal value of the cancelled shares was transferred to the
capital redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration
was charged to unappropriated profits. Details of the shares
repurchased are as follows:

Report of the Directors
ERURE

BE - HEIBEARAF LS
BHE-_Z-ZF+A=1+—BIFE £X2»
BILA 4B (E30,426,0008 TTIEB B A X H M
A BR A B8 @A $£23,096,0000% @A - B
23,096,000/ E B B J& /R » & ££1,082,0000%
AW ARRAFEH - B EROMEED &
EEAREORFE  MBERERNERSEFES
kR - EEEBROAFBOT

Total

Number of shares Purchase price Aggregate

Month of repurchases repurchased per share consideration

fBmE R m AR fBE R AR B BRIBEE HBRE

Highest Lowest
RS RIE

'000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000

TR BT BT TET

January 10,000 1.39 1.20 13,415
—A

February 4,560 1.39 1.19 6,004
s

March 2,294 1.44 1.35 3,188
=H

April 1,668 1.40 1.31 2,257
A

May 3,264 1.40 1.07 4,113
A A

June 160 1.02 1.00 161
avE

July 1,150 1.16 1.02 1,288
+ A

23,096 30,426

The repurchase were made by Directors, pursuant to the
mandate granted by the shareholders, with a view to benefit the
Company and the shareholders as a whole in the enhancement
of the net assets per share and earnings per share.

Saved as disclose above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 July 2010, in so far as the Directors were aware, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had any interest
in a business that competed or was likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group, and to review the Company’s annual report and half-
yearly reports to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board. The audit committee comprises of Mr. Yeung Chi Tat,
Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor Jou Yow-Jen, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's annual
results for the year ended 31 July 2010 in conjunction with
the Company'’s auditors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year.

The Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in Corporate Governance Report on page 35 of this annual
report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
23 November 2010 to 25 November 2010, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. The
record date for final dividend is at the close of business on
23 November 2010.

In order to qualify for the final dividend and to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
25 November 2010, the shareholders’ of the Company should
ensure that all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26/F., Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queens’' Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on 22 November 2010.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company are pleased to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKé cents
(2009: HK6 cents) per share for the year ended 31 July 2010,
totaling HK$46.6 million (2009: HK$48 million) which is expected
to be paid on or before 10 December 2010 to its shareholders
per its register of members at the close of business on
23 November 2010 subject to the final approval in the annual
general meeting to be held on 25 November 2010.
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AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 July 2010 have been
audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2010 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company for the re-appointment
of Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Sheng-Shun
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong

18 October 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ferkPFa
Shi newmﬁ

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 106 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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18 M % BT R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN RS

OPINION =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a H iR A GAMERRCEETEHE
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at WHELEBEEMAF L FHEEBEK
31July 2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows forthe year —ZE—ZFF+A=+—HHHERIE BHE
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting E&EZZ B IFFEN SN RESREE  WiRlE
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance  FE(RTHEHIDAKBEIREL AR -

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited EXPHN(ER)SHMBEEFAERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEDA

Ip Yu Chak = 93:9"

Practising Certificate Number: P04798 WMEFEZRT - P04798

Hong Kong BB

18 October 2010 —E—ZF+A+NAH
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Consolidated Income Statement

ek

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #iZ=

T-TFLAST-ALER

NOTES 2010 2009

fisE —E-TF —ETNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FiErT

Turnover BEE 8 812,093 620,251

Cost of sales SHERA (631,547) (519,193)

Gross profit EF 180,546 101,058

Other operating income Hfth AW 8 17,474 17,537

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAY (28,086) (28,269)

Administrative expenses THFES (94,525) (94,706)

Other expenses Hiofx 10 (5,068) (8,414)

Bad debts written off BHisHER (4) (23,742)

Share of profit (loss) of an associate DEEE N BRI (E5E) 383 (237)

Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR (1) 70,720 (36,773)

Income tax expenses FTiaRiY 1 (3,454) (2,120)

Profit (loss) for the year attributable ARAGEA NEL

to owners of the Company FREH (EE) 12 67,266 (38,893)

Earnings (loss) per share FREF (H8) 14

Basic

HEAR

HK8.51 centsifll  HK(4.86) centsiEill

Diluted

g

HK8.50 centsiBfll  HK(4.86) cents/&1llI
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEBER

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

2010 2009
—B-FF —ETNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit (loss) for the year FNmF(EE) 67,266 (38,893)
Other comprehensive income Hir2ERA ()
(expenses)
Exchange differences arising MEEN
on translation 9,410 (154)
Share of exchange reserve SRS N RIE R
of an associate (120) 427)
Fair value gain on AEHEeRmEEN A TEKES
available-for-sale
financial assets 6,791 7,380
Other comprehensive income FAHMEEEA
for the year 16,081 6,799
Total comprehensive income RAREER AEEFA
(expense) for the year 2EWA(FX)EEE
attributable to owners
of the Company 83,347 (32,094)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e i’%ﬂﬁ)‘ﬁ%%

As at 31 July 2010 R=ZE-ZF+A=+—H

NOTES 2010 2009
Bzt —E-Ef “ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE L& 17 320,309 303,717
Construction in progress TEREIR 18 1,916 18,740
Prepaid lease payments ENHENE 19 57,106 58,057
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESREE 20 44,892 17,086
Held-to-maturity investment ﬁﬁ HEgRE 21 11,610 11,610
Interest in an associate REZ N RIRER 22 1,528 1,652
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 31 - 888
Deposits for acquisition of Wi Tt bR
land use right fize 5,171 -
442,532 411,750
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 165,127 108,989
Trade and other receivables FEME 5 85 3% & Bt e FRIE 24 302,050 205,331
Prepaid lease payments ENHEENE 19 1,301 1,298
Income tax recoverable ARE SR = 3,066
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERA 25 47 598
Derivative financial instruments TESMTA 28 2,938 115
Deposits with bank RITER 26 = 1,026
Bank balances and cash RITHEHLRS 26 333,789 458,000
805,252 778,423
Current liabilities REARE
Trade and other payables [ER B SERF M B N FIA 27 118,909 48,139
Income tax payable JER SR 44,997 50,083
163,906 118,222
Net current assets MEEEZE 641,346 660,201
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDEE 1,083,878 1,071,951
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Fa=g i%#lﬁ“ﬂ%%

As at 31 July 2010 RZE—Z4+tA=1+—H
NOTES 2010 2009
Byt “E-EF ZZTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
Capital and reserves BERLf#E
Share capital A 29 77,801 80,000
Reserves G 1,002,449 990,925
Total equity EnAE 1,080,250 1,070,925
Non-current liabilities EnREBE
Deferred income ETWA 30 1,014 1,026
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 31 2,614 -
3,628 1,026
1,083,878 1,071,951
The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 199 were 106 B & F19B G AV B HRR K E =
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on @)j’\\ T—-EF+H —f—}\ B b & 5 4 1) 2
18 October 2010 and are signed on its behalf by: WA N ESREE

Director

5=

Director

5=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #iZ=

F_F

TELA=T—HILEFE

Share Investments ~ Share  Capital Statutory
Share  Share  options  Retained Exchange revaluation repurchase redemption  surplus  Legal
capital  premium  reserve  profits  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total
ke RGEE  BRE REEN ENRE REEG RMBE SAME  GERR  iRRE 48
fif B BE  GF LBE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00  HKS0M0
Tér TR  TEr  TEr TR TR TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEn
(Note )~ (Note2 ~ (Note3)  (Noted
() Ot (MR (i)
At 1 August 2008 N-ER)\EN\A-A 80000 659,945 6186 293519 8689 - - - U5 9 1148128
Loss for the year ERER - - - B - - . - - - B
Other comprehensive (expense) EAEHZE (B )HA
income for the year - - - - (581 7.380 - - - - 6,799
Total comprehensive (expense) - EMZE (B ALE
income for the year - - - (38893 (581) 7380 - - - - (32094)
Transfer to reserve for value of - SEATERENERERZRR
share options [apsed - - (379 305 - - - - - -
Equitysettled sharebased — RRENHRHERRS
transactions - - 2891 - - - - - - - 2891
Appropriation to reserves  AHEHE - - - B - - - - - -
Dividend declared and paid ~ EMERREEMHS
during the year - - - (48,000) - - - - - - (48,000)
At 31 July 2009 AEENELAST-H 80000 659,945 8702 203668 86309 7380 - - U8R 9101092
Profitfor the year Emihl - - Ry - - - - - Sy
Other comprehensive income ~ EAEHZERA
for the year - - - - 9290 6791 - - - - 16081
Total comprehensive income ~ FRAARALE
for the year - - - 0128 9.0 6,191 - - - - 8w
Exercise of share options fiipehE 2 A 0 - - - - - - - 19
Transfer to reserve for value of - SIATEREHERERZRE
share options [apsed - - (626) 62 - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share-based ~ E&ERAHRHENRS
transactions - - 4385 - - - - - - - 4385
Appropriation to reserves B ER(E - - - 483 - - - - 4832 - -
Shares repurchased and ~ EEAREERD
cancelled (2201 (27,000) - ) - - - 2201 - - (29000)
Repurchase of own shares ~ EEASEHER(
pending for cancellation - - - - - - (129 - - - (1219
Dividend declared and paid  EAERREEMHE
during the year - - - (48,000 - - - - - - (48,000)
At 31 July 2010 ACE-2ELAST-H 77801 632962 12455 21650 9559 14171 (1219 2200 29704 491,080,250
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AEERBER

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

Notes:

Share repurchase reserve

Share repurchase reserve represents the amount paid on the
repurchase of shares during the year but the shares were not
yet cancelled as at the date of the reporting period.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the
shares repurchased which have been paid out of the distributable
reserves of the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit
(after offsetting prior year losses) as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

Legal reserve

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code, the Company's
subsidiary incorporated in Macau is required to appropriate 25%
of its net profit to a legal reserve until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. Legal reserve
is not distributable to shareholders.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of approximately HK$50,818,000 (2009:
HK$47,365,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

g BN

OB O REENFARBRRL (ERDR
WEF AR REH) XNNEHE -

BEAREE R

EAERFFERECEOROEE ARESHE
RAR B AT D IR TR ©

EERBAES

RIBHEARKMBE(HEDERAE - A
REVEPBEK R EENHERRAGER
B EE R OERETE MR RSN
HRTFEBRR) MORBEREXTAHRAD
e BEEZRENSSREIFEEMER
AL BARMEREA A D IRES A8 8
B -

RPORFIFEL - AR RPORPIEMALE
ME R EAREEANM25%EETERHE
BEEZRBOEREZMBE QAR ZMEARSN
50% < EERETFOIRTBIR

EUNCIE ZE PN Tl
ARBEEANEEGABENEBRECRART

B 75 R 2% P BE 2R MY 5 A1 49 850,818,000/% 7T
(=TT NF : 47,365,00087T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR A Eﬁ'ﬁ/)"’%%

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERED
Profit (loss) before taxation BrEE AT & A (B 18) 70,720 (36,773)
Adjustments for: HATHIEELFE -
Interest income FLEWA (4,925) (7,800)
Dividend income 3SR ON (1,695) -
Investment income from PTESBMITERERA
derivative financial instruments (619) -
Increase in fair value of derivative PTESR T AR FEEM
financial instruments (2,934) -
Loss on derivative financial PTEER T EEE
instruments 2,369 3,566
Loss (gain) on disposal of HERIEEEREEE ()
held-for-trading investments 151 (1,296)
Decrease in fair value of FIEEBEHREQNFERD
held-for-trading investments - 24
Amortisation of prepaid lease FAf A &R IE# B
payments 1,298 1,300
Amortisation of deferred income I T A 2 5 (23) (23)
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERZEITE
and equipment 41,415 40,360
Share of (profit) loss of an associate DR R R CEH)) BB (383) 237
Gain on disposal of prepaid & TE & RIE N RS
lease payments - (1,025)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  WERREEE
plant and equipment 466 53
Bad debts directly written off B ER 4 23,742
Impairment losses recognised in BB E R H A
respect of trade and other JEMCR IR RE SRR (E 5 1R
receivables 355 127
Reversal of impairment losses BEIRERE FER
recognised in respect of REVREEE
trade receivables (190) (43)
Allowance for inventories FERE 390 4,437
Reversal of allowance for FERERE
inventories (3,895) -
Inventories lost in fire RAKIBENEE - 998
Government grants BT B (1,853) (312)
Equity-settled share-base R B H IR B TR X
payment expenses 4,385 2,891

112 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED A ¥ & B iR AR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meRERER

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E
2010 2009
—E-2F ZZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating cash flows before LEECEHIMNKERERE
movements in working capital 105,036 30,463
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEEEM)ED (51,386) 23,497
(Increase) decrease in trade and FEIE SRR B
other receivables FEUFRIA (£ h0) 3 (92,472) 66,313
Increase (decreased) in trade and ERBZERFREM
other payables PR FIARE h1 Rt 2) 50,987 (32,034)
Cash generated from operations REKLLEEHNNIRS 12,165 88,239
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid) REI(E)EAEFIESH 1,724 (317)
PRC income tax paid BT BIATS R (3,867) (4,595)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RERETHNREFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,022 83,327
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Payment for derivative financial PTE SR T ARRK
instruments (47,523) (22,440)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYX  BEERE
equipment (34,749) (13,100)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEECREE
financial assets (21,015) (9,706)
Purchase of held-for-trading BEREEEREAE
investments (17,266) (6,928)
Payment for construction in EREIREMNR
progress (8,040) (34,348)
Deposits paid for acquisition ETEE T AR
of land use right (5,171) -
Proceeds from derivative PTESRTERNFSHRIE
financial instruments 45,884 17,932
Proceeds from disposal of HERIEEEREMNFTSHIE
held-for-trading investments 18,899 7,602
Interest received B U= 5,557 6,770
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BEREZED
property, plant and equipment Fﬁ@f?ﬂ 1,099 564
Decrease (increase) in deposits TFEFUR A (3L 1)
with bank 1,026 (1,026)
Dividends received from EUOFEEERERE
held-for-trading investments 462 -
Dividends received from an associate 2 UgE& N BN E 387 327
Purchase of held-to-maturity BERAR Jﬁﬁ?xé
investment - (11,610)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARREZHNRE TR
ACTIVITIES (60,450) (65,963)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAeReRER

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHEIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Dividends paid BEfIE (48,000) (48,000)
Payment for repurchase of shares EAElBENE N (30,426) -
Cash received from government BB RN IR &
grants 1,853 1,361
Proceeds from share issued under RIRB A AT 813 1T I D A
share options scheme FR1SEIA 19 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ARBEEBNESFE
ACTIVITIES (76,554) (46,639)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReERBEESEEBYRDFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (126,982) (29,275)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£¥MBEERRESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 458,000 487,429
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EZRSHgE&
RATE CHANGES 2,771 (154)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£4&MBEERRESEEY
END OF THE YEAR, represented BIRITHMR IR ®
by bank balances and cash 333,789 458,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

GENERAL

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“"Corporate Information” section to the Annual Report.
The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of silicone
rubber and related products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC whose functional currency is
Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is HKS.

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors
consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in HK$.

At 31 July 2010, the directors consider the ultimate
holding company of the Company to be Bluebell Global
Enterprises Limited which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI").

—REH
NFESEERERAR(TARR ) EFH
EREEMALA/BRAR - HEOHRN
BEMARZABRAR (TR E
REM - RARNEMMER R EEE
EHH WA DR AFRI AR ER | £
W - KRB REMBAR(AREE])
TERFEYRBHBEERNRERHE

REMBRERIDABITIETDZS -
BRI BB R RIS R R
ARBITARE DI RRABRENEB
NRAMMIEEEE /BT

HRARBREE LT HEFTRBE
BUBHRREABTZS

RZE—ZFELA=T—H EFR
N R A & R E R R B BBluebell
Global Enterprises Limited (FA & E 22
HE((RERELHFS DFMKT) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GFABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments to standards,
and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA™).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, except for the
amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after T January 2010

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged ltems

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time adoption of HKFRSs

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Costofan Investmentin a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity

(Amendments) or Associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation ("Int") 9 Embedded Derivatives
and HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combinations prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 August 2009.
The requirements in HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements in relation to accounting
for changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after
control is obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary
are also applied prospectively by the Group on or after
1 August 2009.

As there was no transaction during the current year in which
HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) are applicable,
the application of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised)
and the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs had
no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected
by future transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS
27 (Revised) and the consequential amendments to the
other HKFRSs are applicable.

Except as described below, the adoption of the other
new and revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.

FER#HET R EIETNE B
BBREEA(EEBPHRE
28 |) &)

AEBMBEEERERLMBE RS LR
FEIFEER]) [EB A/ IRUBER IR
“EEAFENA-HAHZENEKSE
Bf e AEETR-_TTAFNA—HK
ZRBSERAE G ERFE 275 (K
71 [#R 6 KRB H IR I BRAS ko
EMTE A BIEBIRER - RO R
BRDREHNGETRIETENRE

F A AN 4 [ 30 8 2 B 7G5 i o R R SR 35R
(EER]) hEB G EAR27R(EE
FERNRS  WEAEEMBREE
AIEIFR(EIER]) ~ BEGFERF 275
(BIER]) R EM BB P B HRE LR A
EEEFTHARBE ARG MR BESR
HAFR M AR R o

AREBERA RN EE NI BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting
presentation and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of
the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in
a redesignation of the Group's reportable segment.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures
required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision
set out in the amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDs ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010°

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures?

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Right lssues®

HKFRS 1 (Amendment] Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters?

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters*

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HK(IFRIC)- Int 14 (Amendment)  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement®

HK(IFRIC)- Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments*

Amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2010

Amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as
appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

—EEL A=t ALEE

FERFE RGBT NE B
BHRELEQ(BEMBRE

28 ) )

AEBEYWEREFRATINCEMENR
ERHFAT REETETBRBREE

Bl

FRAREEEAETR)  —EENGEANMHREE

B‘JE’JM*
EEMBESEN(ETR)  CT-TEEANHEEER
S
BREHRNFUR(RE)  BEIRR
ERGIENRNE(BR)  HROE
BRARERERNEIREIR) BRRRENEI DR
EEMBESENFIREAR) AREAMBREENRS
HBBBANSENRRE
WERAR
EEMBASENERR(EAR) SEIRLEEIRNAER
WNFR A

BREBREERREIR SRIE

FE(ARMKESLERRE) BASEASER

-REZUF(BTR)

FEEARMKASLERAS) NRATAAHCRAR

-RRER

! BN —E—FF— - Ak 2&H

ﬁAE’JEEEﬁFﬁEEAZ

2 MRZE—TF - - ARZERARNE

EHAR AR

: R -ZF - -HRXZEHIRNF

AR AR

4 REZ-TF LB —HRIZEHIRNF

EE D

B BEITRR-_Z-—Z2FLA-HAK

—E-—f-A-RARTE
2 & FIR R BRI A K

/Rﬁﬁﬂi)

¢ RZE——F— A - ARZERRARNE

AR AR

’ RZE—=F— A - ARZERRAKRNF

AR AR

Annual Report 2010 =&

—ZEER

119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G EE:

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and will be effective from 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at fair value. The application of
HKFRS 9 might affect the classification and measurement
of the Group's financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will
be effective from 1 January 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees
were required to classify leasehold land as operating
leases and presented as prepaid lease payments in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments have removed such a requirement. Instead,
the amendments require the classification of leasehold
land to be based on the general principles set out in HKAS
17, that are based on the extent to which risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with lessor or
the lessee. The application of the amendments to HKAS
17 might affect the classification and measurement of the
Group's leasehold land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control

over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investment in an associate is carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the net assets of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of

the Group's interest in the relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. FEE:EE s

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including land and
buildings held for use in the production, supply of goods
and administrative purposes) (other than construction in
progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purpose. Construction in progress is
carried at cost less any recognised impairment losses.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to consolidated
income statements over the period of the rights using the
straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G EE:

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of four
categories including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL"), loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investment and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for
debt instrument other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net
gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

J it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recongised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, deposits with bank and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investment is non-derivative financial
asset with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to
initial recognition, held-to-maturity investmentis measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period. (See accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value
of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. FEE:HE s

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

i) Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.

ii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

iii) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.
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GFABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment
transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. FEE:HE s

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities, are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary difference associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
exchange reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
related to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related assets. Other government grants are recognised
as revenue over the periods necessary to match them with
the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on
a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in financial statements.

Held-to-maturity investment

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s held-to-maturity investment in the light of its
capital maintenance and liquidity requirements and have
confirmed the Group's positive intention and ability to
hold those assets to maturity. As at 31 July 2010, the
carrying amount of the held-to-maturity investment is
approximately HK$11,610,000 (2009: HK$11,610,000).
Details of this asset are set out in Note 21.

Reversal of overprovision for Macau Complementary
Income Tax (“MCIT")

In respect of the reversal of overprovision for MCIT as
mentioned in Note 11, the management exercised their
judgement to determine that certain provision for MCIT
had gone beyond the five years time-barred period for tax
assessment and therefore, the respective provision for the
relevant period is reversed. The management will review
the reversal of MCIT provision on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values
involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment, in
accordance with relevant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations
if there is indication of impairment. The calculations and
valuations require the use of judgment and estimates on
future operating cash flows and discount rates adopted. As
at 31 July 2010, the directors of the Company considered
that there is no impairment indication and the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment is approximately
HK$320,309,000 (2009: HK$303,717,000).
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Impairment of construction in progress

Provision for impairment on construction in progress is
made when the construction project is suspended for a
long period; the construction project is technically and
physically obsolete and its economic benefits to the
Group is uncertain; or other evidences can prove the
existence of the decline in value of construction project.
An impairment loss is recognised individually for the
shortfall of the recoverable amount of construction in
progress below its carrying amount. As at 31 July 2010, the
carrying value of construction in progress is approximately
HK$1,916,000 (2009: HK$18,740,000).

Impairment of prepaid lease payments

The Group assesses annually whether prepaid lease
payments have any indication of impairment, in
accordance with relevant accounting policies. The
recoverability of the carrying amounts of prepaid lease
payments is assessed by independent qualified valuer.
In determining fair values, the independent valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited, has made reference to recent market
prices for similar leasehold lands in the same locations
and conditions. In relying on the valuation report, the
management has exercised their judgment and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. As at 31 July 2010, the carrying value of
prepaid lease payments is approximately HK$58,407,000
(2009: HK$59,355,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain investment in listed securities
as available-for-sale and recognised movements of its fair
value in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investments revaluation reserve. When the fair value
declines, management makes assumptions about
the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. As at 31 July 2010,
the carrying value of listed securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets is approximately
HK$32,860,000 (2009: HK$11,730,000).

For the available-for-sale financial assets not quoted in
an active market and measured at cost, the management
uses their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique. Valuation techniques commonly used by the
market practitioners are applied. The Group’s unlisted
equity investments with carrying amount of approximately
HK$12,032,000 (2009: HK$5,356,000) are valued using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on the assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of these
equity investments also includes some assumptions not
supported by observable market prices or rates.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based
on assessments of the net realisable value of inventories.
An allowance is applied to inventories where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the net
realisable value is lower than the costs of inventories.
The identification of obsolete inventories required the
use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and
usefulness of the inventories. Where the actual outcome
in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance write-back in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. As at 31 July 2010, the carrying
value of inventories is approximately HK$165,127,000
(net of allowance of HK$932,000) (2009: carrying value of
HK$108,989,000, net of allowance of HK$4,437,000).

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade

and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. Such provision for
impairment is established if there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
accordingto the original terms of receivables. Management
reassesses the adequacy of any such provision on a regular
basis. As at 31 July 2010, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables is approximately HK$302,050,000 (net
of provision of impairment of HK$517,000) (2009: carrying
value of HK$205,331,000, net of provision for impairment

of HK$406,000).
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Income taxes

The Groupis subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The management of the Group uses their judgements
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
derivative financial instruments. Assumptions are made
based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific
features of the instruments. If the inputs and estimates
applied in the model are different, the carrying amount
of these derivatives may change. As at 31 July 2010,
the carrying amount of derivative financial instruments is
approximately HK$2,938,000 (2009: HK$115,000).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The overall
strategy of the Group remained unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the associated risks. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends and share
buy-backs.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

5. EXEREE

AEENEREE S HEBHEERERE
SmEFH & EFE  BRAKENER
ARELE B TARRAERAD
We AEEMBEBRBEZFHAFTD

;5
=

o

AEBNEARBERERITERLRE
ARARNRGEE AEEER(BREET
BALRHE) NRABEZTERRAE
R - fERRA 8D ARBES
EREAKANAERR - REBEESRZ
& AEERERIR RS R E R
FEEBBEARRE -

TRTH
TR TAENER

2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Financial Assets THMEE
Held-for-trading investments HEEERE 47 598
Held-to-maturity investment BFEREHRE 11,610 11,610
Derivative financial instruments TTEERMTAE 2,938 115
Loans and receivables (including EHR&ERFIA
deposits with bank and bank (BRBITFERAR
balances and cash) IRITHEHRLIRE) 617,926 654,529
Available-for-sale financial assets FAIHHES R EE 44,892 17,086
Financial Liabilities SRIEE
At amortised cost R AR 113,594 65,513
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-

to-maturity investment, available-for-sale financial
assets, derivative financial instruments, trade and other
receivables, held-for-trading investments, deposits with
bank, bank balances and cash and trade and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several
subsidiaries of the Company in currencies other than
those subsidiaries’ functional currencies. In addition,
certain portion of the derivative financial instruments,
trade receivables, bank balances and cash and trade
payables are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

7.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #HZ=Z—%

FrA=+-BLEFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BREBREEERRIGK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (#)
Currency risk (Continued) =30 ))
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBUUIINETENEBLEERERS
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities BERwRE AR AREERAT
at the reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
&E =i
31 July 31 July 31 July 31 July
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F "TThEFE CZB-TF "ITITNF
tA=+-A +tA=t—H +tA=+-B tA=1+—H
'000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
T T Tr T
United States Dollars xET
("USD") 34,467 47,738 4,381 750
Euro ("EUR") BT 1,115 2,571 - -
Japanese Yen ("JPY") H 1,162 - 41,006 -
New Taiwan Dollars e
("NTD") 13,883 5,374 4,317 150

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedging policy. However, the management monitors

foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BXEMREEEERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

Sensitivity analysis BRED M

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of USD, AEBEERAZTET By BHERH
EUR, JPY and NTD. aENEBRR -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TRAVIASE LB T HAEAIMNEE
5% (2009: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the RAPS%(ZZEZENF : 5%)IFRSE o
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2009: 5%) is the sensitivity 5% (ZETNF :5%) ARAEEETE
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to A B EH R ER 4N [ b P S 05 P P By 8%
key management personnel and represents management's RELLR - WHAEIREHIEXSIRA 48
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign FEIMGE c REDITE BB AINE
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only FTEMNREESEIER  WRINEER
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary H5% (ZZEZENF : 5%) FEFHENF
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a BRBRE - TRNBEEBFE NG AR
5% (2009: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative D BB T H A EEAE X EFA5%
number below indicates a decrease in profit where HK$ ZETNEF 1 5%) o MBI AEEAEE
strengthen 5% (2009: 5%) against the relevant currency. HE R N§s5% (ZETHE :5%) 0 8l
For a 5% (2009: 5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant R N HE i m B A RE M R A &2
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact 2 M NSRBI -

on the profit and other equity, and the balances below
would be positive.

usb EUR JPY NTD

xR Bx HE Haw
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
R-%F CTTAF CR-BEF CITNF CZR-BF CTINAF CZR-¥F CTTNR
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tdn TEr TR TEr TR TEr TRz TiEn

Profit or loss BBt ATE

before tax 32 (11,643) (18192 (563) (1,349 179 - (120) (60)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EREREL  BRFHRERILTREE
unrepresentive of the inherent foreign exchange risk as WA - MERE DT AR AR K E A S
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure b B o

during the year.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate deposits with bank and a held-
to-maturity investment and is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits for
the year ended 31 July 2010. To mitigate the impact of
interest rate fluctuations, the Group continually assesses
and monitors the exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management

section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivate
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point (2009: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points (2009: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit before tax would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$608,000 (2009:
HK$542,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate deposits

with bank and held-to-maturity investment.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities and derivative financial
instruments. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined

based on the exposure to price risks at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective equity securities and
derivatives had been 5% (2009: 5%) higher/lower:

- pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 July 2010 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$3,000 (2009:
HK$36,000) as a result of the changes in fair values of
held-for-trading investments and derivative financial
instruments; and

- investments revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,643,000 (2009:
HK$587,000) for the Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of listed available-for-sale financial
assets.

7.
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors, financial
institution and investment counterparties will default
on their obligations to repay the amounts owing to the
Group, resulting in a loss to the Group. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties
fail to perform their obligations at end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 69%
(2009: 66%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 July 2010.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 23% (2009:
43%) and 48% (2009: 56%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds and held-to-maturity
investment is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of deposits with bank and bank
balances and cash deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

All financial liabilities are non-interest bearing and their
maturity dates are within one year or on demand.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

ii)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments; and
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair value (Continued)

iii)  the fair value of derivative financial instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, use is made of discounted cash
flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or
short-term maturities.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #EZ=Z—ZF A=+ —RAIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BXEREEEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (4)

Fair value measurements recognised in MR E AR RER N A F
the consolidated statement of financial BEit2®)
position (Continued)
2010
—E-EF
Level 1 Level 2 Total
£ BB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Financial assets at FVPTL BAFESRILERE
RNEENSBEE
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERA 47 - 47
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIEA - 2,938 2,938
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets
Listed equity securities ETRAE S 32,860 - 32,860
32,907 2,938 35,845
There have been no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 HEHRN F-EME_EBZETET
during the reporting period. ] EE A -
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8.

INCOME

Turnover represents sales value of goods sold to customers
net of sales tax and value added tax.

EHER H A

ZA

EEREEETEPNEREEBERE

ERMIBER -

Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: FRNEERWZIOT -
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Turnover BEE
Sale of goods HESm 812,093 620,251
Other operating income H a2 A
Interest income FLEWA
- Bank deposits —RITIFR 4,562 7,762
— Held-to-maturity —RBEZIBEEE
investment 363 38
Total interest income B A LEEE 4,925 7,800
Compensation received from 2R A RIESE
an insurance company - 1,891
Investment income from PTESRIAMNRERA
derivative financial
instruments 619 -
Increase in fair value of PTHES R T HE A EEN
derivative financial
instruments 2,934 -
Dividend income AR B A 1,695 -
Gain on disposal of HERIEEERE W
held-for-trading investments - 1,296
Gain on disposal of prepaid HEFERE G
lease payments - 1,025
Government grants BT B
— Amortisation of deferred — FRIRER AL
income for the year (M47E30)
(Note 30) 23 23
- Grants related to expenses —ERSEML LA
recognised as other B Sc AR A B (B L)
operating income (Note) 1,853 312
Reversal of impairment losses B O EWE 5 R
recognised in respect of wHRERERE
trade receivables 190 43
Sundry income HIERA 5,235 5,147
17,474 17,537
Total revenues Uz 4258 829,567 637,788
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

TURNOVER AND OTHER
OPERATING INCOME (continued)

Note:  Fortheyearended 31 July 2010, the amount represented
unconditional grants from Dongguan Social Security
Authority for subsidising the unemployment insurance
contribution in the PRC. For the year ended 31 July 2009,
the amount represented unconditional grants from
the PRC government for encouraging the Group’s
technology development in the PRC.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
with effect from 1 August 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, Chief Executive Officer, for the purposes
of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard (HKAS
14, Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical) using a risks
and returns approach. In the past, no business segments
information had been presented. The application of
HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group's
reportable segments as compared with the primary
reportable segments determined in accordance with
HKAS 14 Segment Reporting. Nor has the adoption of
HKFRS 8 changed the basis of measurement of segment
profit or loss.

Segment revenues, results, assets and
liabilities

The Group's revenues, results, assets and liabilities are
primarily attributable to the manufacturing and sale of
silicone rubber and related products. The directors of
the Company consider that there is only one operating
and reportable segment for the Group.

EEENHEMKZEWA 2

Wi BEZZ-ZFLA=+—-HLHF
B BERERZMERERMIE
& B B R R R0 B AR
BE - BE-—FTTNFLA=1T—H
HFE - BRZRETBEBA AR
BASEAERBETRMFEMS
TREGITHBE -

EBRHEED

BE-ZTAENA—BE AEECEK
MEBIMIEIME LR FR LN E] -
BAEVBHME LA FESR A —RTELE
Al MELED BORBI HRBEAEE
TRLERREBITTRAR) RNEE
BREZDHEFEERRMEHENE
BN BAEK AR B R RP RS A
R BEEA(EB G ERFE1457
[ 8BS )R EEERARR N EHRE
B A D B (RIS Ml ) - BT -
VWEZINEBOHMER - BRIEFLES
AERIEIAE D A REEENERRE
DEPLLE - ERE B IRELERIELR
VEEHEFREARENRSEDE
RNBE B IS ERIESIR BN E D
HRE NIk E R AR B R

DEbR S - R BERAE

AEEMfE (8 BEERAGBTIZR
KERENMHEHEYB MEHE
ARBEEAR/AEERE—ELER

i HE -
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 HE=F—ZFLA=1—HILEE

9. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 9. ¥ RHES =)
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Revenue from major products FEEmE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from REEFEERWRHDTAT :
its major products:
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Keypads for consumer EFHE MR
electronic devices 355,942 295,224
Keypads for computers and E) - JSE SRRy Fre e
notebooks 258,477 217,443
Automotive peripheral products /75 FiEE® 36,559 27,547
Keypads for mobile phone FHeirse 122,705 56,856
Others HAth 38,410 23,181
812,093 620,251
Geographical information b 18 &
The Group's operations are principally located in the PRC REENEEFTEZUNPERES -
and Hong Kong.
The Group's revenue from external customers and AEBMIINSEFREREBIERD
information about its non-current assets by geographical BEMENNDREENME D HED
location of the assets are detailed below: NN
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
IR W FRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-TF —TTHNF ZEBE-ZBF —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FET FET

The PRC (excluding B (FAERRIN)

Hong Kong) 426,713 306,665 374,205 369,647
Hong Kong BB 151,968 116,686 10,297 10,867
Other Asian countries  EfhgsMBER 197,355 129,661 - -
The Americas EM 25,076 48,058 - -
Europe BOM 10,981 19,181 1,528 1,652

812,093 620,251 386,030 382,166

Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale financial ERHEETITEREHEESHE
assets, held-to-maturity investment and deferred tax E - EEEIEEREERBEE o
assets.
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e MR ME

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z-ZF—ZF+A=+—AILEFE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 9. ¥RRMED I
SEGMENTS (Continued)
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the HAREEAHEEB10%0NE P K &=EIRE
total sales of the Group are derived from sales of silicone MEFENYWRBEEBEREE  +15
rubber and related products in both years and are as m
follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Customer A EFHR 192,014 177,580
Customer B (Note) ®P 7 (FsE) 97,971 N/A 38 R
Customer C (Note) =P A (BEE) 100,479 N/A i A
Note:  The corresponding revenue does not contribute over it BRRRETREERNEFRENEH
10% of the total sales of the Group in the respective BELR10% °
year.
. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Hfthpa X
2010 2009
—B-ZF —ZZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Exchange losses b N & E 2,082 3,773
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE - WERREERE
plant and equipment 466 53
Loss on disposal of HERIEFEEREERE
held-for-trading investments 151 -
Decrease in fair value of FHEEERE AT ERD
held-for-trading investments - 24
Inventories lost in fire RAKBRNTFE - 998
Loss on derivative financial TESRIARE
instruments 2,369 3,566
5,068 8,414
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

1. TERHAX

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERNEH
— current year —REE 21 211
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B PTISHE
— current year —AFE 10,284 6,478
— overprovision in prior years —BAFERERE
(Note (7)) (P EEG)) (438) (4,237)
9,846 2,241
Macau Complementary Income Tax BPIFTSHE T
("MCIT") ( DRPIPFGHZER] )
— overprovision in prior years —BAFEEERE
(Note (ii)) (P &£ (i) (9.917) -
Deferred taxation RN IE
- current year —RFEE 3,504 (332)
3,454 2,120

Note:

(i)

Overprovision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax
expenses credited to profit or loss during
2009 represents the tax effect on tax benefits
available to the Group in respect of certain
purchases of equipment produced in the PRC
pertained for the year 2008 but approved in year
2009 and the agreement of the tax authorities
on deductibility of certain expenses.

Due to no formal tax assessment notice has
been issued by the Macau tax authority and
the expiry of five years time-barred period in
accordance with the Macau Complementary
Income Tax (Decree Law 21/78/M) Article 55,
the management of the Company assessed
that the overprovision for MCIT in prior years
of approximately HK$9,917,000 is written back
and credited to profit or loss during the year
ended 31 July 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Ta Yang Group (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
("MCQ") was incorporated as a commercial offshore
entity in Macau and is exempt from MCIT.

Underthe Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards. Accordingly, provision for the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25%
of estimated assessable profit for both periods, except
disclosed as follows:

- Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial
Company Limited (“Dongguan Tay Yang”), Huzhou
Ta Yang Electronic Technology Company Limited
("Huzhou Ta Yang”) and Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber
Plastic Industrial Company Limited ("Dongguan Tai
Yang") are foreign investment enterprises and are
entitled to tax concessions whereby the profit for
the first two financial years beginning with the first
profit-making year is exempted from income tax in
the PRC and the profit for each of the subsequent
three years is taxed at 50% of the prevailing tax
rate.

1. IS8 @)

MERNFBNEHBRF NG ER
BmMH16.5%:1 5 o

RIEFENEMNABRZEEMNMRAIR
AR AEBEBEGNRERE KB
BRESHIEAMEH -

RNARBORMBEFBERS)BR AR
(TR DERPIEMAK L AREF A
ERGHEE  BRRBRRMMSHET
Bi o

REFPBEEXMAEVAEEMER
EDREEREBORERED - & B
BRARR-_TTN\F—A-HENHRE
7525% © AL - PEIME AR KRR D
EMEHAREZMERENGER
T M B925%=T & - 1 T I AT IR BE H R
S

- REZFBRBEGBERAR(R=
FF D OMMAFEFRRERA
AN AF ) BR = K F 182
HmBRAR(RE=AF])RINE
©¥  AIZABERR  FI - &
MEE R R AL & M B H R F E R
AR F BT BIPT ISR - B R
= F R F 6 MR IE AT R
i o
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The first profit-making year of Dongguan Tay Yang is
2005. Accordingly, Dongguan Tay Yang is exempted
from the PRC income tax from 1 January 2005 to
31 December 2006 and is entitled to a 50%
exemption of income tax from 1 January 2007 to
31 December 2009. From 1 January 2010 onwards,
provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for
Dongguan Tay Yang is calculated at 25% of its
estimated assessable profit.

The first profit-making year of Huzhou Ta Yang is
2004. Accordingly, Huzhou Ta Yang is exempted
from the PRC income tax from 1 January 2004
to 31 December 2005 and is entitled to a 50%
exemption of income tax from 1 January 2006 to
31 December 2008. In September 2008, Huzhou
Ta Yang is recognised as an approved technology
enterprise and is eligible to a preferential tax rate of
15% from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2010.

The first profit-making year of Dongguan Tai
Yang is 2008. Accordingly, Dongguan Tai Yang is
exempted from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax from
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2009 and is entitled to
a 50% exemption of income tax from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2012.
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 11

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled
to the profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated

income statement as follows:

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=%

—EFE+A=+—HIFE
CTEBE X
ERFEREYESA KREFRNE

Mana A (EE) SR T ¢

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit (loss) before taxation B A AR A (B8 ) 70,720 (36,773)
Tax expense at rates applicable  ZEMRIEEBEREFEA
to profits in the jurisdictions BT 2R BHRZ
concerned 26,560 2,511
Tax effect of income not BHERRBANHEEEE
subject to tax (2,482) (307)
Tax effect of expenses not TR BAZ S 2
deductible for tax purposes 1,574 4,083
Tax effect of share of AGEEE AR CaF)E5a
(profit) loss of an associate BT 7% 5 2 (63) 39
Overprovision in prior years BT FEHRERE (10,355) (4,237)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERT BB E
recognised 120 3,981
Effect of tax exemptions granted BB AR ERIBR EFE
to the PRC subsidiaries (5,475) (3,455)
Utilisation of previously AR BAEARERN B EE
unrecognised tax losses (6,425) -
Tax credit HIEHR R = (495)
Income tax expenses FRABHHAX
for the year 3,454 2,120

Details of deferred taxation are in Note 31.

BRERCEH BN FBHNMEI -
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

12. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 12. FRRF (EE)

2010 2009
e —EENF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit (loss) for the year has F R A (E18) TheE b
been arrived at after (FFAVAT&IE -
charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration [ G 1,118 874
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE A E FRIESE
payments 1,298 1,300
Cost of inventories sold (Note i) D &EFERA (M) 635,052 514,756
Allowance for inventories GEEE(BIEHENT)
(included in cost of sales) 390 4,437
Reversal of allowance for BEGERE(BIEHERAE)
inventories (included in
cost of sales) (3,895) -
Share of taxation of an associate 2 f B & A &) FLIE 426 163
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZEITE
plant and equipment 41,415 40,360
Directors’ emoluments (Note 16) ZFE& (Ki:E16) 10,536 7,365
Impairment losses recognised in  BLIEUE 5 AR 5K 2 A FE UL
respect of trade and other FOERERRE B (M 5E24)
receivables (Note 24) 355 127
Research and development T 28 R AN (B )
costs (Note ii) 10,028 10,080
Payments under operating BRI+ BT R E
leases in respect of land HEBETHRHK
and buildings 8,090 8,677
Staff costs (excluding directors’ B IRACTEEESHE)
emoluments) (Note 15) (Fft5E15) 293,126 225,110
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 12. FRER (BR) @)

(Continued)

Note i: Cost of inventories sold included approximately Bati - EEFEXNABIEEE TRA -
HK$282,633,000 (2009: HK$208,343,000) relating to MERYAGEHEZR(E
staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating e NMEFTALXELEE
lease charges which amount is also included in MEBEER)BEENESED
the respective total amounts disclosed separately 282,633,000 T —EZ NF
above. 208,343,000/ 7C) °

Note ii: During the year ended 31 July 2010, research Batii - HE-_ZT-ZFtHA=+—H
and development costs included staff costs of -FE Eﬂ?éﬁ}i$@%{ié$ﬁﬂ
approximately HK$5,643,000 (2009: HK$5,632,000) BEHNAEEREEE THAR
for the Group's employees engaged in research and #95,643,000% 7L Z T JLEF -
development activities, which are also included in 5,632,000 7C) - ZE S BEIE
staff costs as disclosed in Note 15. T A B IR AR (0 M 52 15FT 3

) -
DIVIDENDS RECOGNISED AS 13. FARR A D KA KRS
DISTRIBUTION DURING THE YEAR
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Dividend recognised as FANERFSD RIS, -
distribution during the year:
2009 final dividend declared EERRENH_ZSZNEF
and paid of HK$0.06 NEARR 2 R%0.067 7T
(2008: HK$0.06) per share (ZZZ)N\F : 0.0687T) 48,000 48,000

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of ARNBEERZMNEBEZ_ZT—ZTF

a final dividend of HK$0.06 per share for the year ended tA=+T-—HBLEFEEKFTRH

31 July 2010. The proposed final dividend will be paid on f& B & B%0.06% JT o #t kK K H &

or before 10 December 2010 to those shareholders whose BBER-_ZE—ZTF+=-A8+AH

names appear on the Company’s register of members on
23 November 2010.

This proposed dividend is subject to approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

FZAERNTFR_-_ZTE—ZFF+—A
T =ARINARBBRRAMAOBIR

AR SRR RN EEBRRBEAX
GLHtE HERE -
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 14.

(a) Basic
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit (loss) attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during both years.

BEREBN(EE)

(a) EZA
FREARBF LM EFE AR
HE AEE R (BB )BRIAB 31T
LB I IEEE -

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Profit (loss) for the year KAREHEB ANEG @A
attributable to owners of (E#E)(FET)
the Company (HK$'000) 67,266 (38,893)
Weighted average number 2 81T E @A &Y INHE T 8L
of ordinary shares (Fh%)
in issue ("000) 790,610 800,000
Basic earnings (loss) per BREAREN (EE) CBIL)
share (HK cents) 8.51 (4.86)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has
one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
share options.

(b) &
ShESRN(EE) HIERES
MEEH L ARESRMARS
TTEINEBEINEFHRETH - N
NAA—REEHSERR - B
T o

2010 2009
—2-FF —EENF
Profit (loss) for the year KANEHEB N BN R A
attributable to owners of (E#8)(F%7T)
the Company (HK$'000) 67,266 (38,893)
Weighted average number B 1T @ A I F19 2K
of ordinary shares (Fh%)
in issue ("000) 790,610 800,000
Effect of dilutive potential  BEEBRNHEZE(TKR)
ordinary shares (‘000) 1,183 -
Weighted average number  FALAGHE &R #E 2 F| 6
of ordinary shares for @R T8 (T k)
diluted earnings per
share ('000) 791,793 800,000
Diluted earnings (loss) BRREER N (BE) GBI
per share (HK cents) 8.50 (4.86)

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same
for the year ended 31 July 2009 as the exercise
price of the Company’s share options was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s
shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

15. ETRA (T EEEEHE)

2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Salaries, allowances and e RN EHMER
other benefits 277,814 211,892

Retirement benefit schemes RGBT B R

contribution 12,274 11,050
Share-based payments VARSAD AR A5 3R 3,038 2,168
293,126 225,110

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined
contribution schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which are available to
qualified employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently
administered funds. Monthly contributions made by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated
under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this country
participate in respective government retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries
are required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of the eligible employees.
Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contributions
under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated
by the relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in Note 32.

BENMBARREBERERIEATES
HEIGDI S A B E B RIEBMHNG
o REHINEERBUEEEDRH
B HANBRARNEESH - MEA
AEARERFHRANET A LE
AR SR SRR AR B8 5 TE AT AR AV B E SRR AR
K@) -

RETFE EEERNMRMN  NEEH
B A Y A A 2 EAR R BUT R R IR AR
MErBI([ZEFE]) - BRI AL
AZEFEMEHER  RABRERN
BARMEHRES - MRS EELD
WIRTHHZ h BUA B RT 3R &Y 28 A 3 B A AR
METEIHFE -HEERERAR
FAERKEEXNEERREEME - A%
Bz Et BN - BEEERENZ
EEH BRI E VK o

BARBENFERKEARERTEE R
EREMNZFERNEBEMNTE
B RET B E R RO HSR -

ARARETAEEREREERENFBER
HRHIFE32 ©
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16. EEREREEENE
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten ENSENTRZ(ZETNEF: LE)
(2009: nine) directors were as follows: EEZEMESEYINT
For the year ended 31 July 2010 BE—Z-ZF+tA=1+—HLEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus contributions  payments Total
HeE HeoRE O BREA  BAERN DRGA @t
REMER fElS  EROGR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TiEn TiEn

Executive directors HITES
Huang Sheng-Shun ERR - 1,384 1,300 12 322 3,018
Huang Te-Wei EEE - 731 285 12 206 1,234
Lin Hung-Ming YA - 948 670 12 228 1,858
Wong Tak Leung EER - 715 255 12 217 1,199
Wu Ih Chen REA - 1,361 880 12 299 2,552
Non-executive director ~ F#H{TES
Kirk Yang BREH 180 - - - 25 205
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive

directors
Yeung Chi Tat hEE 180 - - - 25 205
Hsieh Yu At 120 - - - 25 145
Jou Yow-Jen (appointed ~ BHY (RZFENEF

on 29 December 2009)  TZA-TABEZE) 7 - - - - 71
Chuang Hong-Jen HEC (RZZZNE

(resigned on +ZAZTNBEE)

29 December 2009) 49 - - - - 49

600 5,139 3,390 60 1,347 10,536
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=Z—ZF A=+ —AIFE

16. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR 16. EEREREEBME @)
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ESBM <)
For the year ended 31 July 2009 HE-TTNFLA=1T—HIFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions  payments Total
we  Heo2Y  BRRL BABN URDA @5t
RE R APEIfS  BRANK

HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000
THET THET THET THT TR THET

Executive directors HTES

Huang Sheng-Shun B - 1,368 100 12 217 1,697

Huang Te-Wei BEH - 683 76 12 91 862

Lin Hung-Ming WEH - 877 69 12 126 1,084

Wong Tak Leung L - 660 54 12 109 835

Wu Ih Chen REH - 1,09 80 12 180 1,368

Kirk Yang (note) BER () - 946 57 6 - 1,009

Non-executive director ~ F#H{TES

Kirk Yang (note) R (fzE) 90 - - - - 90

Independent BUkNTES

non-executive
directors

Chuang Hong-Jen HEC 120 - - - - 120

Yeung Chi Tat hEE 180 - - - - 180

Hsieh Yu B 120 - - - - 120

510 5,630 436 66 723 7,365

Note: Mr. Kirk Yang ceased to be the executive director BiaE - BREBLAR -_ZTAEFE
and chief financial officer of the Company and —A—HRTBELAQR
was re-designated as an independent non- HBITE S R 485 5
executive director with effect from 1 February %o WHRATEBIENTE
2009 for a term of three years. H . RHI=F -

Annual Report 2010 —E—Z 44 169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z2=%F

—Z2ELA=T-HLEE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The discretionary bonus for both years was
determined by reference to the performance of
the directors and the profitability of the Group.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the two years ended 31 July 2010
and 2009.

Senior management’s emoluments

All of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group for the years ended
31 July 2010 and 2009 were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
directors and senior management as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the two years ended
31 July 2010 and 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BERRE

Properties Furniture,  Leasehold
held for Motor  Plantand fixtures and improve-
own use vehicles  machinery  equipment ments Total
FEERME RE  HEREE KA -%E B8N @t
Rt %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR TAT
COST RAE
At 1 August 2008 RZZZ\ENF—B 78725 6,450 268,059 59,236 56,133 468,603
Additions AE 1563 419 5,451 4,306 2352 14,091
Transfer from construction in BREERIE
progress (Note 1) (Pizk18) 22,685 - 4,69 343 - 27,718
Disposals L& - (750) (1914) (358) - (3,022
At 31 July 2009 RZEENE
tA=t-A 102,973 6,119 276,286 63,527 58,485 507,390
Exchange realignment B 5 50 1,237 72 3,335 736 681 6,061
Additions AE 1277 936 23,243 2611 3124 31,191
Transfer from construction in aRarRIR
progress (Note 18) (KizE18) 19,772 - 4,402 728 - 24,902
Disposals e - (546) 9,776) (63) - (10,385)
At 31 July 2010 RZZE-F%
tA=t+-A 125,259 6,581 297,490 67,539 62,290 559,159
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ B&t#E
At 1 August 2008 RZZZNFNA-A 6,639 3410 103,563 26,041 26,065 165,718
Provided for the year EREE 4,112 564 22,435 8,050 5,199 40,360
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - (675) (1,692) (38) - (2,405)
At 31 July 2009 RZZENE
tA=t+-A 10,751 3299 124,306 34,053 31,264 203,673
Exchange realignment 3 139 36 1,558 4564 393 2582
Provided for the year FREE 4,957 613 22915 7,833 5,097 4,415
Eliminated on disposals HERLHE - (491) (8,266) (63) - (8,820)
At 31 July 2010 RZZE-F%
tA=t+-A 15,847 3457 140,513 42,219 36,754 238,850
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 July 2010 RZE-%%
tA=t+-A 109,412 3124 156,977 25,260 25,53 320,309
At 31 July 2009 RZZENE
tA=t+-A 92,222 2,820 151,980 29,474 27,21 303,717
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BER®RE#)

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives less residual value as follows:

Properties held for own use situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion.

Estimated useful life

NEWZE - BERREBEBEEUNERER
AT EE AR FER TSR EERTET
5

ME T ENREE R ERRERD

MEH R EGE A A F (e A iR
S50FA) R BEENE °

Residual value

fh 5t ol 62 A S 28 FeREE
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%
B 5%
Plant and machinery 10 years 10%
R Bt =8 105
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Rt RENERE 5%
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease term
and 5 to 10 years -
HEMEEE HEHRSE10F - AREERE
The carrying value of properties held for own use shown FHiFEE AMENEERERE
above comprises of:
2010 2009
—B-FF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THETT
Medium-term lease FHIEE
- in Hong Kong —IREE 9,287 9,522
- outside Hong Kong — BB M= 100,125 82,700
109,412 92,222
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=Z—ZF A=+ —AIFE

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 18. F&IR=E
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 August WAA—B 18,740 12,110
Exchange realignment HE 54, SR B 38 -
Additions NE 8,040 34,348
Transfer to property, plant and EHEEE  KE
equipment (Note 17) Na&E (MEE17) (24,902) (27,718)
At 31 July REA=1+—8 1,916 18,740
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. A HERIE

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC held under
medium term leases, on which the Group's factory plants
and staff quarters are built. The remaining period of
the land use rights of the Group ranges from 41 to 46
years.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

ENEERBEEEEBANFEITIES
HBEOFEN L (RN EBEZE LI
BEMERBIES)MLIERENANK
A o AEE L FAENFIRERN
TANBL6FRE -

FLER SR B RETTR DM

2010 2009

—E-Z2F —ERNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Current asset MBEE 1,301 1,298
Non-current asset EREEE 57,106 58,057
58,407 59,355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

21.

ASSETS

20.

AHEEESHEE

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise: At ESRMEERE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FETT
Listed securities: EHES
— Equity securities listed —HEBEAIMEE FTTE IR
outside Hong Kong, BH - BATE
at fair value 32,860 11,730
Unlisted securities: ELEMES
- Equity securities, at cost —RARFESE - BEAR 12,032 5,356
44,892 17,086

The fair value of the above listed securities is determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the
relevant stock exchange.

The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT

Held-to-maturity investment comprises:

21

bt EHRSNAFEIDEREER S
FRA] S MSAHREAEETE -

IE LT RN E SRR & BRI A ARUR,
Bt E  WIARZFEFNAELF
BRFABEEN  ARREFRAR/ER
FEERASEMAE -

FEERIHKRE

RAZIMRERR

2010 2009

—E-EF ZERNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Unlisted debt securities M EKES 11,610 11,610

The unlisted debt securities carry variable interest at
three-month LIBOR plus 0.95% per annum, payable
quarterly, and will mature in May 2012.

174 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED & % &% % i A R A 7

ELMEBRELFNAEFN RS =B AR
HERITRIZEF S INFFR09SE - B
FERBESZN  MEBEHFIER
ZE-—ZFHHARH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 22. REEE R AV ER
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - A AE 1,278 1,278
Share of post-acquisition profit 2 {hUkEE& & T
and exchange reserve less Ko FEE 3 (4R
distribution of profit it anii 250 374
1,528 1,652
Details of the associate at 31 July 2010 and 2009 are as m:g ZERN_EZNFLA=+—H "
follows: JEARMRENT
Proportion of
Form of Place of Registered  ownership
Name of business incorporation/  paid up interest
company structure operation capital directly held  Principal activity
ARER EBRER ML, AMBERE EEEFEWN TEXH
Kd-giuk BRREERLA
SiTY Silcum & Ta Yang  Incorporated Germany EUR250,000  50% Trading of silicone tiles and
International GmbH electrical switching systems
("SITY") and related items
SITY Silcum & Ta Yang A 1= 250,000807C  50% YBEBR
International GmbH BEAGRIAHEREES
("SiTY")
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #HZ=Z—%

FrA=T-BLEFE

22.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect

of the Group's associate is set out

below:

22. REE N FIIER (2

BERAKEBRERRNAREERMTE

BHESRFINT

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total assets BESE 7,250 5,404

Total liabilities BERE (4,194) (2,100)

Net assets BEFE 3,056 3,304
Group's share of net assets of REBE DL QT

an associate MEEFE 1,528 1,652

Revenue Uz 23,787 20,763

Profit (loss) for the year FREF(EE) 766 (473)

Group's share of profit (loss) of FAREE DG
an associate for the year B A B R E F (E18) 383 (237)
23.INVENTORIES 23. F7E

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&ET TFET

Raw materials R 65,781 49,992

Work-in-progress R m 46,583 30,091

Finished goods EAK 52,763 28,906

165,127 108,989

During the year, there was significant increase in the net
realisable value of raw materials due to market shortage
in raw materials. As a result, a reversal of write-down of
raw materials of approximately HK$3,895,000 (2009: nil)
has been recognised and included in cost of sales in
current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

(a)

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, FEWE 5 BRF K H b FEUFIE
(a)
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Trade receivables EWE 5 R
— from third parties —ERE=F 277,682 191,435
— from an associate — eI A E 1,868 843
Less: Impairment losses W RESERE=7
recognised in respect B AR AR
of trade receivables RIEEE
from third parties (373) (4006)
279,177 191,872
Prepayments, deposits and BT FIA Tﬁzﬁ
other receivables T Eo At R U R 23,017 13,459
Less: Impairment losses e Fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ”ﬁl
recognised in respect IR
of other receivables REEE (144) -
302,050 205,331

The Group normally grants to its customers credit
periods ranging from 30 days to 135 days which are
subject to periodic review by the management.

An aged analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment

REB—RETFHEENTI0BE
135SHMEEH  WHEREETEH
YERRET ©

IR EERENERE S

losses recognised, presented based on the invoice date RRRE D TRmE BN EREA
at the reporting date is as follows: HIZEIT
2010 2009
—E2-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month or —fEA AR EREE
on demand 122,850 67,950
More than 1 month but —fEAR FELR=EH
less than 3 months 113,904 86,965
More than 3 months but =@AEBLR+ @A
less than 12 months 41,630 36,882
More than 12 months TZEAMNRE 793 75
279,177 191,872
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(b)  The movement on impairment losses of trade
receivables is as follows:

24. RN E 5 BRI H At R UK TR

()

b) RWEZEFBEBENEFHMN

T

2010 2009

it —ZTENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 August ®AA—H 406 322

Exchange realignment HE 5, 3 B 8 -

Impairment losses ERRBEEE

recognised 213 127

Impairment losses reversed B & BIREEE (190) (43)
Amounts written off Wi AT AR B8 & 5

as uncollectible (59) -

At 31 July wtA=+—H~ 373 406

Included in the impairment losses recognised are
individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$373,000 (2009:
HK$406,000) over which the Group does not hold any
collateral. The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to customers that are in financial difficulty or of
poor credit history.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. FEUNE SRR EfbEWEIE
(Continued) (%)

(c) The movement on impairment losses of other () EmEWFIBARERBENT
receivables is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
At 1 August RNAA—H - -
Exchange realignment HE 5 0 B 2 -
Impairment losses [mE RNt
recognised 142 -
At 31 July REtA=+—8 144 -
Included in the impairment losses recognised are BEBEEBEBRESHRBEAED
individually impaired other receivables with an 144,0008 TT(ZEZNF : T)H
aggregate balance of approximately HK$144,000 BRI EE M EWFRIE - mAKE
(2009: nil) which are due to long outstanding. The WSR2 F A A A R o
Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

(d) At 31 July 2010 and 2009, the analysis of trade (d RZE—ZFTFER_ZETNLFLA
receivables that were past due but not impaired =t+—HB EafETERENE
are as follows: SRERBEERDITAT

Past due but not impaired

EAREYRREE

Over Over
Neither past 90 days but 1 year but
due nor less than less than
Total impaired <90days 1 year 2 years
st W EE $R90A 90R K E BE-F
TERE BIR-F EBIRREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET TET
31 July 2010 “E-TF+A=1+—H 279177 263,664 13,903 1,479 131
31 July 2009 “EENFLA=T-R 191,872 179,067 11,752 978 75
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(d

(Continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Trade receivables that were past due but notimpaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track payment record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade receivables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they

24. RN E 5 BRI H At R UK TR

(%)

(d

(%)

3 48 380 A 7 RO (E ) B 55 R LKA AR
BT Y BRSNS EEFE
o ARETERZFEHRTEE
Al o

B 8 BB I R (B 70 B 5 e WK AR K
HEAEENRLCHER NS LB
VEFER - REBEER AR
EEERALEBEANEE MAERIDH
BAAIBHEKRE - HEEERESH
AL SR ERE IR E R -

FEWE ZERRAEIE TFIAERE
BHREEB I EBIENE
L

relate:
2010 2009
=5 =
‘000 '000
T FT
usD ETT 28,548 19,058
EUR BT = 472
NTD =k 2,100 3,011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

25. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 25.#EE&KRE

26.

2010 2009
—B-FF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FABT
Equity securities at quoted IRANFE 7 (BT 5MIE)
market price
— listed in Hong Kong —REB LT - 598
- listed outside Hong Kong —REBEERIN T 47 -
47 598

DEPOSITS WITH BANK AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 July 2009, the fixed interest rate on deposits
with bank, with maturity within six months, was 0.20%
per annum.

At 31 July 2010, bank balances and cash comprise of
cash held by the Group of approximately HK$204,874,000
(2009: HK$261,712,000) at prevailing market rate. The
maturities of bank balances were within three months.

Bank balances and bank deposits with maturity within
three months carried interest at average market rates of
1.17% (2009: 1.29%) per annum.

At 31 July 2010, the Group’s bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB181,180,000 (2009: RMB142,205,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

26.

RITERURBITERR
BE

RZZZAFLA=+—8 XEARX
B BRERTTF R AV B E F F R 30,20 -

R-ZE—ZTFLA=+—"8  RITEHK
RepREAEEFENRESRENT ST
Rt B.49204,874,0008 L T TN F
261,712,000/ 7T ) ° 5% 5 #8717 & &1 60 2 Bf
BAZEAR -

=@ A NEIHRIRTT A R IRTTIF 5%
117B(ZZEZNF - 1.29B)0FHm5
MEETB °

RZE—ZEFLtA=Z+—H8 ' ~A5EHE
NMARBAENRITEH LRGN A
A R #181,180,0007t( = T T A F -
AR #142,205,0007T ) ° B AR A
SN B S R B O B R ARG R AEEE - B
[ M E B IRAR T AR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=Z—ZFtA=+—RHLFE

26. DEPOSITS WITH BANK AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

Included in bank balances and cash are the following

26. SRITERUURBITESRK

B&®

RITHEBREIRSBETIIAREERD

amounts denominated in a currency other than the WREE B DN E B EHEMNFUA ¢
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Tt
usb e 5,540 28,680
EUR BT 1,115 2,099
JPY H 1,162 -
NTD =kt 11,783 2,363

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. BB SRR HMENTKIE

2010 2009

—B-FF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FAT

Trade payables ERE SR 65,576 31,822
Other payables E b 708 53,333 36,317
118,909 68,139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

An aged analysis of trade payables is as follows:

. BN E SRR HAEARUR

(%)
BN ES R RRDTOT

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within 1 month or on demand —EAREIESREREE 26,083 20,969

Due after 1 month —{@ A% 1B =17 RN EIH

but less than 3 months 33,844 8,477
Due after 3 months =@ ABE+=EARNEE

but within 12 months 3,986 1,887

Due after 12 months T {EARDIE 1,663 489

65,576 31,822

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
30 — 90 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled
within the credit timeframe.

Included in other payables are amounts in total of
approximately HK$3,000,000 (2009: nil) representing
accrued directors’ emoluments.

Included in trade payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

BEEMNFHEEHR0ENAR - K
SERBRBREEBK - ARRARE
NFBEGEERAA -

H & 1 FRIR B3 A 51 493,000,000 7T
—TENF  BNEHEEHE -

ENESEFABRETIIAEBERD
WEEEBAINE R EREHR

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETENF

‘000 '000

Fr Tt

usb E 4,381 750
JPY S| 41,006 -
NTD et 4,317 150
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28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28.

Derivatives not under hedge accounting:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

fTEemIA
IR RS ET A -

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Derivative financial assets TELREE

Investment in warrant REFENRE 4 115

Currency structured forward E¥EBITERAR
contracts 2,934 -
2,938 115

In March 2010, the Group entered into a non-deliverable
net settled RMB/USD structured forward contract (the
“"Contract”) with a bank. The notional amount of the
Contract is USD5,000,000 with 24 monthly settlement
amounts commencing from April 2010. On each settlement
day, if the exchange rate of USD to RMB falls with a
stated range, a fixed amount of USD20,000 would be
receivable from the bank. If the exchange rate of USD
to RMB appreciates above the contracted rate at the
settlement date, an amount would be payable by the
Group. The amount payable by the Group would be a
function of the settlement amount and the difference
between the contracted rate and the exchange rate of
USD to RMB at the settlement date. As at 31 July 2010,
the fair value of the Contract was determined based
on the valuation provided by an independent qualified
valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=Z—ZF A=+ —AIFE

28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29.

(Continued)

Included in derivative financial assets are the following

amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

28. fTEE®M I B )

TTEEMEERE TIIAREEEND
BEER SN ERIEN S -

2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
T T
usD e 379 -
SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) EENRBEITIRA
NOTE 2010 2009
BizE —E-ZF% “EENF
Number of Number of
shares shares
RAEE W& E
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T TER Fhx FEr
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares  BREE0 AT L Bk
of HK$0.1 each 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully ~ BETRERT
paid:
At 1 August BNAA—H 800,000 80,000 800,000 80,000
Exercise of {Tiois g
share options 0] 20 2 - -
Share BED REHERH
repurchased
and cancelled (22,014) (2,201) - -
At 31 July R+B=+—H 778,006 77,801 800,000 80,000
Note: KT -
(i) During the year ended 31 July 2010, 20,000 new 0 NEzE—Z=—E=#+A=+—8

shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company were issued

at a price of HK$0.96 per share upon exercise of

share options granted on 24 December 2009. The

new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing

shares in issue in all respects.

1EFE » 20,0008 & A FI{E0.10/8 7T
MARRHBER -—FTEAF
TZAZTOARENERERET
6 1& 12 8 I B 180968 T & 1T °
BETHRAES T EERARN
FHAARER
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. BRA& (#)
(b) Repurchase of own shares (b) BEEIZAE AR
During the year ended 31 July 2010, the Company REBEZE-_ZE-—ZFF+HA=+—HIt
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock FE - AARIPRBRMELOASE
Exchange as follows: AR FEET

Number of Highest price Lowest price
shares paid per paid per  Aggregate

Period NOTES repurchased share share  price paid
A Pzt BE EAER 28R 2
RABE ERER BIEER Erken
'000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT BT FET
January 2010 —T-TF-f (i 10,000 1.39 1.20 13,415
February 2010 “T-T4ZR (i) 4,560 1.39 119 6,004
March 2010 —E-TFZf (i) 2,294 1.44 1.35 3,188
April 2010 “Z-TFMA (i) 1,668 1.40 1.31 2,257
May 2010 “E-ZTFRHA (i) 3,264 1.40 1.07 4,113
June 2010 “T-TFRA (i) 160 1.02 1.00 161
1-11 July 2010 “Z-TF+A-A

Z1+—-H (i) 68 1.02 1.02 69
22,014 29,207

12-31 July 2010  =Z—-FF+A+=H
£=1+—H (i 1,082 116 1.10 1,219
23,096 30,426
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b) Repurchase of own shares (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The repurchased shares were cancelled and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to section 37(4) of the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled
of approximately HK$2,201,000 was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares
of approximately HK$27,006,000 was charged to
share premium.

(i)  The repurchased shares were pending for
cancellation at 31 July 2010 and the amount paid
on the repurchase of the shares of approximately
HK$1,219,000 was charged to the share repurchase
reserve. The repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled on 11 August 2010.

30. DEFERRED INCOME

29. BA ()

(b) BEIAXG M E)
e

() ECRERGOBEEEE  mAQR
BEITRATEZEZEROE
EEHR - BEHSHESQEE
(ZZZEFLBR) BTG
AEREFHERNEENSED
2,201,000/ 70 2 AR B o ) 42 488
EX-wNHEE ol AE)
- 5934 B £927,006,0007% 7T B2 1t
B 17 = (B BRI -

iy MRZEBE—ZFLA=+—08 B
BIRR D EfF7EsH - MBERGE
- & B2 #91,219,0007% 7T B # B%
DEBEFEER MR - B EEKRG
HER-_Z—ZTFN\A+—8%=
88 o

0. ELEU A

2010 2009

—2-2F —ZENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAT

At 1 August ®AR—H 1,026 -

Exchange realignment HE 5, SR B 1 -

Granted during the year FAET - 1,049
Credited to consolidated ARG WA R

income statement (23) (23)

At 31 July REtA=+—8 1,014 1,026

During the year ended 31 July 2009, the Group received
a government grant of approximately HK$1,049,000 from
AL EREREEZEE for the acquisition of
prepaid lease payments. The amount will be recognised as
other operating income over the unexpired lease term of
prepaid lease payments. During the year, deferred income
of approximately HK$23,000 (2009: HK$23,000) has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

RBE_TTNFEA=T—HILFE
HIR - AREREDNTAN G ERE R
ERZEeRBARNEEREMS T
) I 4 B #91,049,00078 7T ° % & HR
BREMEERBAERHENNER
REMEERA - FR - BETRAD
23,000/ 7L( ZF T AL 4F : 23,000/ 7T )
ERERARER AR

Annual Report 2010 —E—Z4 %% 187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR REN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereof during the current
and prior years:

31. EERIE

AEENBEFECERNIZRER
RHEE)ABEMEZESHWT

Deferred
income
Unrealised Accelerated  Estimated arising from
profits on tax tax government
inventories depreciation losses grant Total
FEH IEHIE EEHE BEHBIEL At
RERER e BE  HEZRA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 1 August 2008 RZZT\F\A—H (556) 223 (223) - (556)
Charged (credited) to  REEW@ENR (GTA)
consolidated income
statement (75) (78) 78 (257) (332
At 31 July 2009 RZZEZNE+LA=1—H (631) 145 (145) (257) (888)
Exchange realignment  [EJ{ZH% - - - (2) 2
(Credited) charged to Rizalia® GrA) 1k
consolidated income
statement 3,498 (24) 24 b 3,504
At 31 July 2010 RZZ-ZF+HA=1—H 2,867 121 (121 (253) 2,614

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$11,460,000 (2009:
HK$3,353,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 July 2010 ZZ=%

DEFERRED TAXATION (cContinued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$9,105,000 (2009:
HK$34,415,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$733,000 (2009: HK$885,000) of such
loss. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining losses of approximately HK$8,372,000
(2009: HK$33,530,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At 31 July 2010, approximately HK$486,000
(2009: HK$23,927,000) included in the above unused
tax losses will expire after five years from the year of
assessment to which they relate to. Other estimated tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed
on 16 May 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option Scheme”) and a
“Post-IPO Option
Scheme"”) whereby the directors and eligible employees

Post-IPO share option scheme (the

of the Group were given the rights to subscribe for shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated in two schemes.

At 31 July 2010, the total number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the two schemes was 17,244,000
(2009: 7,085,000), representing 2.22% (2009: 0.89%) of
the shares in the Company in issue at that date. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the two schemes is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with
a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

31.

32.

LA

—EEL A=t ALEE

EERIE ()

RBERER AEBHFHRBAHE
&5 18 #99,105,000% 7o( = T T )1 F ¢
34,415,0007% 7T )+ A # ¥ E R K m
Ao B 5 A B B B £733,000% T

— T T A, 4F : 885,000/ 7T ) W R IE T
%RIEQE" Eﬁ%*ﬁgfﬁﬁ’*x&lﬂj/m
£ BEE LR T B 18 498,372,000 7T

— T T A, 4 : 33,530,000/ T )
RELEREBEBEE - R_ZT—FF
tﬂ +—B FiEAREAHIE
&5 18 R 49486,000/8 Tt — F T L F ¢
23,927,000/ 7T ) # A L FE R B9 S F 12
BETAFREAR - B At HEEE]
mIR AL

BT &

BER-_ZZ+FRA T/ BEBHK
REMARR  ARREME R A%
ERERETE(BRAAHAEEIER
EEE D RERRAABEEEBERETS
(BrrAEsrERESS] &
gt AEEBNEZUREEREEER

BRBARR WD - A &M IER
I R S MR AR
R-ZZE-—FFLA=+—RH  &MEs:

%JTE&M&rﬁﬂifﬂiﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁﬁﬁwx
5 48 B B17,244,0001( —ZEZ N F
7,085,0000%) - HHE R AR AIZAD %
TRM222% (ZZFZ % 1 0.89%) °

FAGEERE IR i i aan)
A REVS AR AR R E S E R
BRAEAQRNRTARFRACEITRS
10% ° FME ] F & A E ] A L3 KA
REER BRI R E BT R T
TR AR A B A BV AR AR R E it
ERT NS HBBAR T AEMNE T
1% MEBRRNIBLIENITES
?ﬂﬂjmﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂsmw‘
BB 8 385,000,000/ 7T M BERS AR D

AR S SO o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR REN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BIRESTEl#)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the THEERARAESETF B TE2ER
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the (MREERE) (WA RAROAREL A
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; HeymE : (WROREERLE B HH }EJIJ
(i) the average closing price of the shares for the five AEE BB FHRTE  RiilVARQ
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; R By mEE -

and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: TR EBIT
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
R AH bl TEH 1@
Pre-IPO Option Scheme 16 May 2007 One to five years 8 June 2008 to HK$2.20
commencing from 15 May 2017
8 June 2007
BALREBENBRESE —STLERATAH B-ZZLHANR “ZTN\FERANR 22087
I FERSF Z_Z—t4¥0A+AHA
Post-IPO Option 24 December 2009 0.5 year 24 June 2010 to HK$0.96
Scheme - Lot 1 23 December 2019
BRAREERBRENE —TTAFT-AZTHEE 05%F “E-RERXAZTEA 096/ 7T
—5—# EZT-NF
+-AZ+=H
Post-IPO Option 24 December 2009 1 year 24 December 2010 to HK$0.96
Scheme - Lot 2 23 December 2019
BERNARERERESE —TTAFT-A-THEAE 15 ‘%—§¢+‘H‘+EE 096/ 7T
—HH# E_ENE
+ZRA=t=H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

32. BIRESTEl#)

TREEHREEFENARABRER
share options held by employees during the year: FRHEE) :

For the year ended 31 July 2010 BE-Z—ZEFtA=1+—HLEE

Outstanding Outstanding

at 1 August Granted Exercised Forfeited  at 31 July
2009 during year during year during year 2010
RZZBNE R-B-%F
NRA—H tA=t+-H
e RATHE R ERTHRE FRRK fe RATHE
Pre-IPO Option Scheme ~ BAARMEEAERENEl 7,085,000 - - (425,000) 6,660,000
Post-IPO Option BRNARERBRESE
Scheme - Lot 1 —F—H# - 5,475,000 (20,000) (163,000) 5,292,000
Post-IPO Option BRAREERBRERE
Scheme - Lot 2 —E#t - 5,475,000 - (183,000) 5,292,000
7,085,000 10,950,000 (20,000) (771,000) 17,244,000
Exercisable at the end  ATRFERITEE
of the year 10,138,000
Weighted average IETATREE
exercise price HK$2.2087C  HK$0.96BTT HK$0.96ETT HK$1.648TL  HK$1.44/8 T

For the year ended 31 July 2009

Outstanding at

BE-EENFLtA=T—HLEE

Forfeited Outstanding at

1 August 2008 during year 31 July 2009
R-EZENF R-BZAEF
NA—H tA=+—-H
8 RAT6E FRRK i RAT L

Pre-IPO Option Scheme EPNGE: =5
FEAR T 2 7,425,000 (340,000) 7,085,000

Exercisable at the end ARERITEE

of the year 3,457,000

Weighted average g FIHITEE
exercise price HK$2.2078 7T HK$2.207 7T HK$2.207% 7T
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, TRERNTENEREmMS - R1T
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise R MEEHRKREAEII16E T

is HK$1.16 (2009: nil).

ZETNF E) o
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 24 December 2009, the Company has granted share
options under Post-IPO Option Scheme to subscribe for
an aggregate of 10,950,000 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.10 each in the Company to the directors and
eligible employees of the Group. The closing price of
the Company’s shares immediately before 24 December
2009, the date of grant, was HK$0.90.

The estimated fair values of the options granted during
the year were calculated using The Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were
as follows:

32. [BERESTE 2

RZZETNFE+_A=-+ME K A
BIEHALAAEEREBRETSIMASE
BEERAERESRDEBRE R
BE A ££10,950,0000% = I FI{E0. 1075 T K
AAREBE - ARAFRMDNEZRD
A =—ZEENF+ A= THARAUK
B A0.9078 T °

RFERFTR LB RENGE A FERR
N —aTRHTHIREERAGE - @A
HIRAWBIELT -

Share options granted on
24 December 2009
R-ZEZBNF+-AZ-+MA

R B RE
Lot 1 Lot 2
F—#t ETHt
Fair value at measurement date ~ RETEHHMNAFE HK$0.318 7T HK$0.317&7T
Share price &5 B1% HK$0.927%& 7T HK$0.927%& 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.96/8 7T HK$0.967& 7T
Expected volatility TE R I8 54.21% 54.21%
Option life B AR ) £ HR 5.25 years 5.25%F 5.5 years 5.5%F
Expected dividends TEEAR B 4.2% 4.2%

Risk-free interest rate (based on B[R &%

Hong Kong Exchange (REEBINEESFIR) 1.90% 1.96%

Fund Notes)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price of a comparable
company of the Company, since the Company is a
newly listed company and has limited price history. The
excepted life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
consideration.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$4,385,000 for the year ended 31 July 2010 (2009:
HK$2,891,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABEREN

For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=%

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)

(i)

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

3B.BEIRS

() BREEMBERES

—EEL A=t ALEE

TTHEESN

financial statements, during the year, the Group A - ARG B BLEE & A RIRT L BA

entered into the following transactions with the TS :

associate:

Name of company Nature of transactions 2010 2009

NOEE: REME —E2-FF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET
SiTY Sales of silicone rubber 8,567 6,082
keypads
SiTY HEYBRE
Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEEEEA SR

The remuneration of directors of the Company and

FR - ARBEERHEBEIEEE

other members of key management during the year [ERK B /BT ¢
was as follows:

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Short-term benefits EHIEF 10,403 8,052
Post-employment benefits  BE%1& & 7 109 123
Share-based payments VARR 7 75 B 89 1T K 1,536 1,146
12,048 9,321

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

AKRABEENMEBITHA B E N
THFMEEerEEERALN
KB EMISBEMET -
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

34.

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EXREE
2010 2009
—B-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted ~— BUHE T3 FIBHEETHY
for but not provided in the BrRRNGE M BHRE
consolidated financial BENERMAS
statements in respect of:
— Acquisition of property, —EmE - BB
plant and equipment B 7,482 5,034
— Acquisition of land — B + (s R A
use right 1,081 -
— Acquisition of —WER S
available-for-sale e E (s
financial assets (Note) - 6,676
8,563 11,710
Note: At 31 July 2009, the Group had committed to acquire Kt M-ZZEZAFELA=1+—8 K&
unlisted equity securities outside Hong Kong. [ 2 R 7 & B SR NS 3F E T AR
COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 35. & A E&KIE
LEASES
The Group as lessee KEBEAETEA

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases for its factories, offices and staff quarters. The
leases were negotiated for terms ranging from one to
five years, with the options to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

AfEREEREREE T WEAIE
B WAZRELIES - RSAEA
M F—EnS  pAAREBERE -
ERHE RO T ENEE - REEE
R DIERARS -

Atthe end of reporting period, the Group had commitments RBERR - NEBIREBE N BHEEE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEAN BRI N REESERIERE
operating leases which fall due as follows: RIBREIBER DT :
2010 2009
—2-2F ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Land and buildings: T RAEF
Within one year —F A 6,713 7,083
In the second to F_ZRF
fifth year inclusive (BREEEME) 9,291 10,922
16,004 18,005
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #Z=F—ZF L A=T—RHILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITON 36. &AW B AR ER

OF THE COMPANY

NOTES 2010 2009
M5 —E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current asset IEMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIMIEE 104,149 104,149
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables E b e F0R 680 228
Amounts due from [ CENGIE e
subsidiaries (a) 783,015 658,627
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHR LIRS 29,672 113,940
813,367 772,795
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables E b F0R 4,267 1,091
Amounts due to subsidiaries B ENGIE e (a) 185,807 125,207
190,074 126,298
Net current assets MEEEFE 623,293 646,497
Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities 727,442 750,646
Capital and reserves BRRFE
Share capital A& A 77,801 80,000
Reserves it (b) 649,641 670,646
Total equity W= BE 727,442 750,646

(a) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand. The fair values of

the amounts at the end of the reporting period

approximated to the corresponding carrying

amounts due to their short-term maturities.

(a) FEULFEAIH(E 2 BTN
EMREAMIEA  £ERBER
1832 - B ERIRUES R IR
5 AR RS SRS A PR

FERRTEEARE o
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITON  36. A QX BB B R RTER )
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves (b) &
Share Share Capital
Share option  repurchase Retained  redemption
premium reserve reserve profits reserve Total
RtaE ERE kukE REEH EXRE g
1] 1] fit

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 August 2008 RIZZNENR—H 659,945 6,186 - 2259 - 668,390
Total comprehensive ENZENALE

income for the year - - - 47,365 - 47,365
Transfer to reserve for value Bk IR IRiER)

of share options lapsed EEEEZRE - (375) - 375 - -
Equity-settled share-based & EFHIR

transactions E¥R - 2,891 - - - 2,891
Dividend declared and paid ~ £RERRERFRE

during the year - - - (48,000) - (48,000)
At 31 July 2009 RZZTNE

tA=+-A 659,945 8,702 - 1,99 - 670,646

Total comprehensive ER2ENNEE

income for the year - - - 50,818 - 50,818
Exercise of share options riEkEkE 23 6) - - - 17
Transfer to reserve forvalue  FEAEERIER

of share options lapsed BEEAZRE - (626) - 626 - -
Equity-settled share-based ~ EHRERHNRHERRS

transactions - 4,385 - - - 4,385
Shares repurchased and BEE R R

cancelled (27,006) - - (2,201) 2,201 (27,006)
Repurchase of own shares  BEAF RN

pending for cancellation - - (1,219 - - (1,219
Dividend declared and paid ~ ERERREEFRE

during the year - - - (48,000) - (48,000)
At 31 July 2010 RZE-TF

tA=+-H 632,962 12,455 (1219 3242 2,201 649,641
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. X ENB L F
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company RBERR ARAREENEEHNEA
at the end of the reporting periods are as follows: BIFBIT
Place of
incorporation/  Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries establishment ~ shares held registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
) P iRy, FERHER BRfRE/ 558 XN
BUhY iftEx EiRxER
2010 2009 2010 2009
2-%F ZEENE Z2-8F “ITNE
Ta Yang Silicone Rubber ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares 1,000,000 shares 1,000,000 shares 100% 100% Trading of silicone
Industrial Company
Limited of HK$1 each  of HK$1 each rubber
KEYBBIZERDA  BR EER 1,00000088% 1000000%&%  100%  100% EEVE
EE1RTORG EEETORD
Chief Ocean Limited HongKong  Ordinary shares 1 share of 1 share of 100% 100% Provision of management
HK$1 each HK$1 each services
FHARAR Bk AR 1REE 1REE 100% 100% RiERRE
1R 1ETARD
Ta Yang Group Limited BVI Ordinary shares 11,930,811 shares 11,930,811 shares ~ 100% 100% Investment holding
of US$1 each  of US§1 each
KEEEARAA ZERLES LR 11930, 811KER 11930811%ER  100%  100% REER
EE1ZTNRG EEETHRD
Top View Investment BVI Ordinary shares 1 share of 1 share of 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited US$1 each USS1 each
RRRERR ABRABE  ERRK 1HREE REE 100%  100% REER
ERAT 12Tk 1ETHIRG
Ta Yang Group (Macao Macau Ordinary shares 1 share of 1 share of 100% 100% Trading of silicone
Commercial Offshore) MOP100,000  MOP100,000 rubber
Limited each each
REEE (B8R S Lk 1REE 1REE 100% 100% BEYE
BRRH) BRAR 100,008 100,000&77
KEke ikt
Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone  PRC Contributed capital - HK$86,000,000  HK$86,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Rubber Industrial silicone rubber
Company Limited
REAFEBHRERAT  PE BAER 86,000,00087% 86,000,000 100% 100% BEVE
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For the year ended 31 July 2010 #E=F—TFtA=T—HIFE

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. TEMBE A"l

Place of
incorporation/  Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries establishment ~ shares held registered capital interest of the Group ~ Principal activities
WEARZR AL/ HEROER BRfRE/ 158 IEER
B & LS
2010 2009 2010 2009
—8-%F “FRNE ZR-¥F CTENE
Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic ~ PRC Contributed capital US$38,000,000  US$38,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Technology Company silicone rubloer
Limited
ANKFBTHEERAA  HE N 38,000,000%7% 38,000,005 100% 100% BEYR
Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber  PRC Contributed capital HK$5,000,000  HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Plastic Industrial Company silicone rubber
Limited
REFAGEERARAT T8 N 5,000,000 500000047 100% 100% BEYR
Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber ~ PRC Contributed capital HK$53,372,623  HK$43,323,394 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Plastic Industrial Company silicone rubber
Limited
RENFRERRARDA  TE HABR 53372,62387 43303 394% T 100%  100% REVE
Huizhou Fu Ying Rubber ~ PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd
BNBREEERERLT  PH NV 12,800,00087% 12,800,000 100% 100% El
Huizhou Rui Mei Silicone ~ PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Rubber Industrial Co., Ltd
BIREEBERERAT  PH N 12,800,000 12,800000%7 100% 100% nxER
Huizhou Shuo Ying Silicone  PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Rubber Industrial Co., Ltd
NeREBRRARDA  HE HABR 12,800,007 12800000%7C 100%  100% VESE
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38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2010 2= -S4t A=T—RHIL5E

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. X EM B AT (&)
Place of
incorporation/  Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries establishment ~ shares held registered capital interest of the Group ~ Principal activities
WEARZR AL/ HRRHER BRIRA/ 158 IEER
BUih% &R RlERRER
2010 2009 2010 2009
“3-2% = L o
Huizhou Fu Mei Silicone PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Rubber Industrial Co., Ltd
ENREEBERERAT  HE NV 12,800,000 12,800000%7 100% 100% NEER

Note:  All entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign
owned enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 24 September 2010, the Company announced the
proposed issue of Taiwan Depository Receipt (the “TDR")
and the proposed listing of the TDR on Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Detailed terms of the TDR, including the
structure of the issue and offer size are still subject to
finalisation. Details of the proposed issue of TDR are set
out in the announcement dated 24 2010.

38.
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFMBME

For the year ended 31st July 2010 2= —Z&+A=+—HLFE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE¥E

Year ended 31 July
BEtA=+t—-HLFE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—ETRFE TTAF —ETN\F —TTNF ZE-BF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TET FET

o

Turnover R 579,556 629,839 744,908 620,251 812,093

Profit (loss) for the year ~ FR&EFI(EE) 144,123 159,589 100,383 (38,893) 67,266

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #HLReEEREE

As at 31 July
RtA=+—8
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEERFE ZZTEFE ZZTENF ZTNGF ZEB-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T FET FHET FET
(Note) (Note)
(BfF3E) (BfF3E)

Total assets BERE 491,727 1,213,553 1,299,202 1,190,173 1,247,784
Total liabilities BE®BE (242,351) (191,551) (151,074) (119,248)  (167,534)

249,376 1,022,002 1,148,128 1,070,925 1,080,250

Total equity = BE 249,376 1,022,002 1,148,128 1,070,925 1,080,250

Note: The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on A7 AR AR _ZTEEXRF_A-_+ =B %
23 February 2006 and became the holding company of the e E¥ % FEfMAy WEAETEAG
Group with effect from 17 May 2007 as a result of a reorganisation B(FHBER AR T £ fF a1 A
scheme as set out in the Prospectus dated 28 May 2007 issued —+NBHENERER)BE-_ZT+F
by the Company. Accordingly, the consolidated financial TFA+EHBRAREENIZERAR -
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2007 It AEEHE-_ZTTLFEA=T+—HIE
and the comparatives have been prepared as if the current FENGA M BRER M BB F TR IR
group structure had been in existence throughout the years BNEBERENFMERFE—EFEMNEE
presented. mEmAK -
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Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Flat 28, 23/F, Metro Centre Il, 21 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BANEERBEENHRERET L HBTIELE

Tel B3 - (852) 3678 5088
Fax {85 - (852) 3678 5099
Website #84F : www.tayang.com
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